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'Uliam Cass, PA

Commissioner
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu Bureau of Rail & Transit
and the Honorable Council May 6, 2024

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT) to pay an amount not to exceed
$335,025 to Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (Vendor 177511), Concord, NH, project # 68057C
to procure replacement rolling stock, technical software, and a bus shelter expansion, effective upon
Governor and Council approval through June 30, 2028. 98% Federal Funds, 2% State Capital Funds.

Funding for this agreement is available in Fiscal year 2024 as follows:

04-096-096-964010-2916 FY 2024

Public Transportation
072-509073 Grants - Federal $326,650

04-096-096-960030-1340

19-146:1XVIF Public Transit

034-500161 New Construction $ 8,375

EXPLANATION

The NHDOT has approved a request for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5339 Bus and Bus
Facilities Capital Program funding from Southwestern Community Services, Inc.. (SCS) The funding is
for an ADA-compliant bus shelter to be located in the City of Claremont, ITS Equipment Base
Computer-Aided Dispatch (CAD) software to include automatic vehicle location, real-time system, and
automated voice announcements, and one (1) ADA-compliant minivan that will expand route services in
Claremont to accommodate increased demand.

SCS is a private, Non-profit organization that provides Rural public transportation, including
transportation for seniors and individuals with disabilities, in Sullivan County as Sullivan County
Transportation.

The NHDOT released a public notice on September 27, 2022, announcing the availability of funding
from the FTA Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities program. NHDOT solicited proposals from public
transit agencies and private non-profit organizations engaged in public transportation services. Five (5)
transit agencies (Advance Transit, Inc. (AT), Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack County
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(CAPBMCI), Southwestern Community Services (SCS), Tri-County Community Action Program
(TCCAP), and Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation (COAST)) applied by the November 21,
2022, deadline, and all were awarded funds for eligible projects. The subject projects were delayed
pending NHDOT's consultant-based research options for statewide implementation, which included
confirmation of cost estimates for the projects.

A project evaluation committee consisting of three (3) Department staff from the NHDOT Bureau of Rail
and Transit reviewed and scored the 5339 applications submitted for projects. The evaluation committee
members included the Public Transportation Administrator, Frederick Butler, Transportation Specialist,
Michael Pouliot, and Transit Grants Coordinator, Paula Devens. Each reviewer evaluated and scored
applications based on the criteria indicated in the application materials. Every application met NHDOT's
criteria for inclusion in its public transit funding plan and will be awarded separate amounts for the
aforementioned transit systems. The evaluation matrix and scores are provided below for reference:

1
The applicant has the fiscal and technical capacity and adequate budget to operate
service and conduct ongoing maintenance associated with this capital request.

20%

2

The applicant complies with relevant Federal and state regulations and has a history
of compliance with regulations and reporting requirements. New applicants must
demonstrate sufficient resources for compliance.

20%

3

The applicant successfully demonstrates service efficiency and effectiveness,
measured in ridership, service miles and hours, costs, and fare recovery. New
applicants must demonstrate the ability to measure performance and achieve goals.

20%

4

The applicant conveys how this addresses a critical public transportation need.
Applicants need to adequately illustrate how the project will benefit the agency's
transportation program/services, including how it is necessary for continued and/or
improved operations. (As replacement vehicles/equipment are prioritized, detailed
information is especially important for expansion projects. Vehicle replacements are
presumed to address needs.)

25%

5

The applicant demonstrates involvement in and support for the project, financial and
otherwise, on the part of citizens and local government, e.g., letters of support,
willing to provide local match above minimum required, etc. (Vehicle replacements
are presumed to have such support.)

15%

Total Scoring 100%

Transit System Score Status

Advance Transit (AT)

(30) bicycle racks - replacement 86.2% G&C Contract (completed)

Advance Transit (AT)

Other Equipment -SEFAC lift system, tire
changer/balancer, AC evac.

78.3% G&C Contract (completed)

Advance Transit (AT)

Other Equipment- Forklift 77.3% G&C Contract (completed)

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack County (CAPBMCI)

ITS Equipment Base w/CAD/AVL/AVA and
Real Time

79.3% G&C Contract (pending)

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack County



(1) ADA - small cutaway bus 16 passenger-
replacement

84.2% Statewide Procurement

Community Action Program of Belknap-Merrimack County

(i) ADA - small cutaway bus 12 passenger-
replacement

84.2% Statewide Procurement

Southwestern Community Services (SCS)

Facility renovation 73.3% G&C Contract (completed)

Southwestern Community Services

Technical equipment - expansion 68.2% G&C Contract (pending)

Southwestern Community Services

(3) ADA - small cutaway bus 12 passenger buses
- replacements

76.7% Statewide Procurement

Tri-County Community Action Program (TCCAP)

New telephone system - replacement 74.5% G&C Contract (pending)

Tri-County Community Action Program

New internet system equipment - replacement 74.7% G&C Contract (pending)

Tri-County Community Action Program

(2) ADA - small cutaway 12-passenger buses -

replacements
91.3% Statewide Procurement

Cooperative Alliance for Seacoast Transportation (COAST)

(1) ADA - small cutaway 16-passenger bus - 88.0% Transfer

replacement

SFY 2024

FTA Section 5339

Capital Projects

Total

Project

Costs

Federal

FTA 5339

FTA

Percent
State Match

/

Local Agency Match

1. ADA minivan $85,000 $72,250 85% $6,375 $6,375

2. Dispatching software $298,000 $238,400 80% $0 $59,600

3. Bus Shelter $20,000 $16,000 80% $2,000 $2,000

Total Funding $403,000 $326,650 $8,375 $67,975

Total Grant Funds $335,025

The total project cost is $403,000 which includes $326,650 FTA Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities
Capital Program and $8,375.00 State match, and $67,975 Agency match. This agreement reflects only the
Federal and State portions of the project for a maximum contract amount of $335,025.

SCS will procure the equipment following Federal procurement guidelines, and SCS will pay the
vendor(s) for the equipment and will submit an invoice for Federal and State reimbursement to the
Department.

In the event that Federal Funds are unavailable, additional General Funds will not be requested to support
this program.

This agreement has been approved by the Attorney General as to form and execution. The NHDOT has
verified that the necessary funds are available. Copies of the fully executed agreement are on file at the



Secretary of State's Office and the Department of Administrative Services Office, and subsequent to
Governor and Council approval will be on file at NHDOT.

Your approval of this resolution is respectfully requested.

Sincerely,

William J.Cass, P.E.

Commissioner

Attachments
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FORM NUMBER C-1 (version 11/2021)

Subject: SFY 2024 FTA Section 5339

GRANT AGREEiMKNT

The Stale of Now Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GEiNERAL PROVISIONS

1. Identiricution and Dcfihitions.

I. I. State Agency Name

NH Department of Transportation

1.2. State Agency Address

PO Box 483, 7Hazen Dr. Concord. NH 03302-0483

1 .3. Grantee Name

Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

1 .4. Grantee Address

6 Kinney Place Clafemont. NH 03743-3748

1.5 Grantee Phone U

603-542-9609

1.6. .Account Number

04-96-96-964010-2916-0

72-500575

1.7. Completion Date

June 30. 2028

1 .8. Grant Limitation

$335,025.00

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency

Frederick Butler, Public Transportation Administrator,
Bureau of Rail & Transit

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number

603-271-2565

If Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By signing this form we certify that we have complied with
any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant, including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

1. 1 1. Grantee Signature 1 1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signer 1

Oanic/s, 6£0
Grantee Signatuie 2

N/A

Name & Title of Grantee Signor 2

N/A

Grantee Signature 3

N/A

Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3

N/A 1

1.13 Stale Agency Signamre(s) 1.14. Name & Title of State Agency Slgnor(s) 1
Michelle Winters. Director of Aeronautics. Rail & Transit |

1.15. Approval byAtlornev General (Form. Substattec and Execution) (IfG & C approval required)

By: ^ Assistant Attorney General, On:
1.16. Approval by Govenior and Council (if applicable)

By: On:

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified in block 1.1 (hcreinaficr referred to as "the State"), the Grantee identified in
block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as "the Grantee"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly
described in the scope of work attached hereto a.s EXHIBIT B (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to
a.s "the Project").

Page I of 3
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4.

•l.l.

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5..V

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7 I.

7.2.

R.

S.l.

S,2.

».3.

9.

9.1.

AKKA COVKKKD. li.xccpi iis xiihcrwi.-ic spccificatly provided lor IktcIii. ihe
Granlcc shall perform ihc i'rpjcci in. and with rcspeci to. the Siaie of New
Hampshire.
y.fKKCnVK DATK: COMPl.KTION OK PkOJKC."!.

This Agreement, and all ohiigaiions of ihe panics hcaninder. .shall bectimc
efTcciivc on the dale on the date of «ppn)val of ihi.s Agrccmcnl by the Governor
and Cixincil of the Slate «>f New llamp.shirc if reqnircd (block l.lbl. or upon
signature by the Slate Agency as .shown in block 1.14 ( •the KlTectivc Date").
H.scepi as otherwise specillciilly provided herein, the Project, including ajl reptm.s
required by this Agreement, .shall be coniplclcd in ITS entirety prior to the dale in
block 1.7 (hercinancr referred to as "the Completion Date").
CRAN'I' AiMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: NOl.'CHKRS:
PAVMK.NT.

The Grant Amount is identified and more pariiculatly described in KXHIBfr C.
attached hereto.

'Hie tminncf of. and .schedule of paymeni .shall be as set I'onh in KXHIHrf C.
Ill accoixlance with llic jmivisioiis set lotth in b.Xllini I (?. nod in considemiion
olThe stitisfaciory performance olThe Projeci. as deietmined by the Stale, and :i.>
limited by .sub|wragniph 5.5 of ihcsc general piovisions. the Stale shall pay the
Granlcc ihe Gram Amoiini. lite Siuie .shall withhold from die ummmi otherwise

payable lo ihe Graiiiee under this subpanigruph 5.3 ibose sums required, or
pcniiiiled. to be withheld piir.stiam to N.H. RSA S0:7 through 7-c.
Hic payment by the Slate of the Grant amotint .shall he the only, and the complete
payancni lo the Grantee tor all e.xpenscs. of whatever naiitre. incuiTcd by the
Grantee in the pcrlonnancc hereof, atid .shall be the only, attd the cumplcle.
coinpcnsaiion to the Grtmtee for ihc Projeci. The Stale shall have no liabilities In
the Granice other than the Grant Amount.

Notwilh-slanding anything in this Agrccmcnl lo ihc ctmlrury. atid noUviihslanding
une.vpecicd circumstances, iti no escni shall the loiiil olTill puytnenis aiiihori/ed.
or actually made, hcreunder e.scecd the Gratil liinitulion set fonh in block l.S of
these general provisions.
CQMPLIANCK UY GRANTKK WITH LAWS AND RKGULATIONS. In

connection with the pcrfonnance of the Project, the Grantee shall comply with all
statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, stale, cotinty, or miinicipiil
authorities which shall imp\ise any obligations or duty up«iti the Granite, including
the acquisition of any and all necessary penniis and KSA 31 -95-b.
RKCORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Hffeclivc Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Dstte. unless othcnvi.se required by the grant tenns or lite Agency, the Grantiv
shall keep detailed aecoiints of all ctpcnscs incuned in connection with the
Projeci. including, hut noi limited to. costs of administration, transportation,
insurance, telephone calls, and ciericaJ materials and savices. Such accounts
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and other similar documents.
Between the Rffcctivc Date and the date seven (7) years after the Completion
Dale, unless otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency pursuant to
subparagraph 7.1. at any lime during the Grantee's normal business honrs. and as
often a.s the State shall demand, the Grantee .shall make available to the State nil
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. I'hc Grantee shall
pcrntii the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits
of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data (lus that
icnn is hereinafter dclmed). and other information rciuiing to all matters covered
by this Agrccmcnl. As u.sed in this paragraph. "Grantee" includes all persons,
natural or fictional. afHiiated with, controlled by. or under common ownership
with, the entity identified a.s the Grantee in block 1.3 of these provisions
pkrsonneL
The Grantee .shall, at its owii c.xpense. provide all personnel necessary to pert'onn
the Project. I hc Gianiec warrants that all personnel engaged in the Projeci shall
be qualified to perfonn .such Project, and shall be properly licen.sed and authorized
to perform such Project under all upplicuble laws.
■fhc Grantee shall not hire, and it shall nut pennii any suhcontnieU'r. .suhgnmiee.
or other person, firm or eorporaiion with whom it is engaged in a eombined el fort
to perform the Projeei. to hire any pcr.<on who has a conlroctiial rclaiionship with
the Stale, or who is a Slate olTicer or employee, elected or appointed.
I'hc Grant Ofllcer shall be the representative of the Slate hercundcr. In the event
of any dispute hcreunder, the interpretation of this Agiecmeni hy the Grant
OKleer, and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be final.
DA TA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.
/\s used in ihi.s Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all infomiuiion and things
developed or obtained during the performance of. or acquired or developed by
reason of. this Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports, fik-.s.
foimulae. surx'cys. maps, eharu. sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial
reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic rcpreseniaiiuns.

Computer programs, computer prinioiit.s. notes, letters, memoninda. paper, and
documenis. ail whether linLshcd or untlnishcd.

9.2, Between the Effective Date and the Compieiion Date the Granice shall gran' " •
the State, or any per.son designated by it. unrestricted aeee.ss to all dat:
e.xaminaiion. duplication, publication, iranslulion. sale, di.sposal. i>r for any ot. .
purpose whai.sitcvcr.

S».3. No Jala shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than Ihc Stale.

9.4, Gn and after ihe Effective Date all daia. and any properly which ha,s been received
from the State or purchi^cd with funds provided for that purpo,se under thLs
Agrcemcm. shall be the pn)pcny of the State, and >hall he relumed to the Stale
upon demand upon lenninalion of this Agreement for any reason, whichever
.shall fir.st »H:cur.

9.5. The Slate, and anyone it shall designate, .shull have unrestricted auih.iriiy lo
publish, disclose, di.strihiiie and i>iherwise tise; in whidc or in pan. all diiia.

10. C.'GMH TIOiNAI. NA TURE OR AGREEMENT. Noiwiihsianding anything in
thi.s Agrccnieni to the conirary. all obligations ol ihe Slate hcreunder. including,
wilhoiii iimiiaiion. ilic Ciintinuance of payinetils liercimder. are coniingeiii upon
the availahiliiy or Continued apprupriaiion of funds, and in no event shall the State
he liable for any paymenis hcreunder iti c.xee.ss of such available or approptiatcd
funds. In ihe event of a reduction or lenninalion of those funds, the Slate shall
have ihc right ii> w ithl«)kl payment uniil such funds become avuilahle. it ever, and
shall have the rigiil to iciminate lliis Agrccmcnl immcdialcly upon giving ihc
Grantee notice of such lenninatiun.

11. EVK.Vr QE DEFAUL I : RE.MEDIES.
1  I. I. Any one or more of the ft ilUiwing acis or omissions ol the (.irantec shall ciinsiituie

an event of default hcreunder (licrcinaftei re ferred lo as "Evcni.s of Default"):
11.1.1 Failure to perform the Projeei satisfactorily or on .schedule; or
1 1 .1.2 Failure to submit any repon required hcreunder; or
11.1.3 Failure to maintain, or permit access to. the records required hcreunder: tir
11. 1.4 Failuic to perform any of the other cuwnanis and conditions of this Agreement.
11.2, Upon iheoccuirenceofany Event of Default, the State may take any one. ormore.

or all. of the following actions;
II.2 1 Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and requiring it

to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser specification of lime,
ihiny i30) days i'mm the dale of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not
timely remedied, tenninnle this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Grantee notice of termination; and

1 1.2.2 Give ihe Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and susper"
all payrneni.s to be made under thi.s Agreement and ordering that the punion ti.
Gram Amount which would oihcnvi.se accrue to the Granlcc during ibe period
I'mm ihe date of such notice unitl .such lime a.s the Stale dclcnnincs that the
Grantee has cured the Event of Default .shall never be paid to the Granlee; and

1 1.2.3 Set off agairest any other obligation the Stale may owe to the Grantee any damages
the Siaie sul fers by rea.son of any Evcni of IX-fauli; and

I  1.2.4 Treat ihe agreemeni a.s breached and pursue any of iis remedies ai law or in equity,
or both.

12. TERMINATION.
12.1. In the event of any early lerminaiion of this Agreemeni lor any reason other than

the completion of the Project, the Grantee shall deliver lo the Cnini Officer, not
later than fi fteen (15) days after the date of lenninalion. a report (hereinafter
re ferred to us the ■Termination Report") describing in detail all Pnycci Work
pcrfonncd. and the Grant .Amount cunKd. to and including the dttic of tcnninaiion.
In the event of Tcnnination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general

12.2. provisions, the approval id" such a Tcnnination Kcpon by the Stale shall entitle
the Granlee to ivceivc that portion of the Gram amount earned to and including
the date of termination.
In the event •>(" Tcrminaiion under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of the,se general

12.3. provisions, the approval of such a Tcnnination Repon by the Slate shall in no
event relieve the Grantee from any and all liability for damages suslained or
incurred by the Sialc a.s a result of the Gnimce'.s brwich of its obligations
hcreunder.
Noiwiihsianding anything in this Agreement lo Ihc contrary, cither the State or.

12.4. except where notice default hxs been given to the Grantee hcreunder. the Grantee,
may tcnninaie this Agreemeni without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice.

13. CONFLICr OF INTEREST. No ofllcer. member of employee of the Granlcc.
and no representative, officer or onployce of the State of New Hampshire or of
the govcnttng body of the loculily or loeaiiitcs in which the Project is to be
pcrfonncd. who e.xcrcuscs any functions or responsibilities in ihc review or

Page 2 of}
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appruvul of the iindcnuking or curr>'iii]> oul of such I'rojccl. shall participiiic in 17.2.
any decision relating to this Agrcctncni which alTccts his or her personal interest
or the interest ttt'any corporation, partnership, or association in which he or .she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuniary inieirst. direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds ihureot'.

M. GRA.VrKK S RKLATION I Q THK STA I K. In the pcrlomtance of this
Agreement the Grantee, it.s employees, and any subcontraci«)r or subgranice of IH.
the Grantee are in all respcct.s independent euniractors. and are neither agents
nor employees of the State. Neither the Grantee not any of its officers,
employees, agents, mctiibcrs. subcontractors orsubgraniecs. shall have authority
to hind the State nor arc they entitled to any of the henelli.s. workmen s
eonipcnsaiion vir emoluments provided by the State to its employees,

15. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTKfVCTS. 'ITie Grantee shall not assign, or 19.
otherwise ininsfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
eooscni of the State, None of the Project Work shall be subeoniruetcd or
subgrantcd by the Grunicc other than as set forth in li.<chihit B wiihiuil the prior
written consent of the Slate. 20.

16. INDEMNIFICATION. ITie Grantee shall delcnd. indemnify and hold
harmless the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all
losses suffered by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties iucscned against the State, its offieei-s and employees, by 21.
or on behalf of iiny person, on account of. bu.scd on. re.sulting front, arising out
of (or which may be claimed to arise oul of) the acts or omissions of the Grantee
or subeonlniclor. or subgranice or other agent of the Grantee. Noiwiih.stunding
the fot'eguing. nothing herein eoniaittcd shall he deemed to constitute a waiver
of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved to
the State. '1'his covenant shall sur\-ive (he tenninalion of this ugrectnenl. 22.

17.

17.1 The Gmntee shall, at its own e.xpense. obtain and maintain in force, or shall 2.1.
require any subconiracior. subgrBttlee or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the following
insurance;

17.1.1 Sialulorv- workers' compensation and employees liability in.surunee for all 2-1.

etnployegs engaged in the pcrfomianec of the Pi\>jeel. and
17.1.2 General liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries, death or property

damage, in nniouni.s not less ihati Sl.OOU.UOU per oeeurrenee and S2.IHK).(>0(i
aggregate for bodily injur>' or death any one incident, and S5t)U.(KK» for property
damage in any otic incident: and

The policies described in suhparagr.iph 17.1 of (his paragraph shall be the standard
fomt employed in the State of Now Hampshire, issued by underwriters acceptable
to the State, and aulhuri/ed to do business in the State of New Hampshire. Oraniec
.shall fumi.sh to the Stale, certificates of insurance for all rcnewal(s) of insiitanee
required under this Agreement no later than ten (10> days prior to the e.xpiralion
date of each insurattee policy.
WAIN KR OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions
herctif after any I:vent of Default shall be deemed a w-aiverof its rights xviih regard
to that Event, or any subsequent Event. No e.xpress waiver of any Event of Default
shall be deemed a wiiver of any prtivisions hcr«>f. No such failure* of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail, postage
prepaid, in a United Statc.s Post t>ffiee addre.s.sed to the panics at the addresses
first above given.
■AMENDiMENT. 'fhis Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an insirtimeni in writing signed by the partie.s hereto and only after approval of
.such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Goxcntor and Council of the State
of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGKEEiMENT AND TERMS. Ihis Agreement shall
he eonsirxied in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective sueec.ssors
and assignees. ITie captions and contents of the "subjeei" blank are used only as
a matter of convenience, and arc not to be considered a part of this Agreement or
to be ti.scd in dctcmtining the intend of the purtie.s hereto.
THIRD PARI IES. lite parties hereto do tiol intend to bencril any third parlies
and (his Agreement shall not he construed to confer any .such benefit.
EN TIKE ACRKEiMKiNT. I'his Agreement, which may be e.xeeulcd in a number
of eouiiterpart.'!. each of which shall be deemed an original, corestitutes the entire'
agreement and understanding between the parties, and .supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PkOVISIUNS. Ihe additional or modifying provisions set forth in
E.xhibit A hereto arc agreement.
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Conlraclor Intials

Dale

als



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
EXHIBITS TO GRANT

Exhibit A Special Provisions

Exhibit B Scope of Services

Exhibit C Budget

Exhibit D Vehicle Inventory

Certificate of Good Standing

Certificate of Corporate Vote

Certificate of Insurance

FTA Certifications and Assurances

FTA Master Agreement

2 CFR Part 200

Federal Clauses

Minibus Federal Clauses- Rolling Stock
Technical Software Federal Clauses- Dispatch
Bus Shelter Federal Clauses- Construction

Social Service Documents to Include:

501 (c)3
Financial Report
Board of Directors

Key Personnel and Salaries
Resumes



Revised 1/221202^

SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.

EXHIBIT A

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

A.I. Amend G-I Section 2. "SCOPE OF WORK" by adding the rollowing:

2.1. The Grantee may change services only with the prior written agreement of the. State and in
accordance with applicable Federal Transit Administration (FTA) requirements.

A.2. Amend G-1 Section 5. "GRANT AMOUNT: LIMITATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS:

PAYMENT" by adding the following:

5.6. As applicable based on Federal participation ratios, the amount paid by the State to the Grantee
shall not exceed allowable capital costs as identified in Exhibit C. Upon request by the State, the
Grantee shall provide and document the availability of local funds sufficient to meet the project
cost in excess of the Grant Price Limitation.

5.7. The Grantee shall submit a request for payment to the State on a form specified by the State on a
monthly /quarterly basis, together with all information to support the request. Such requests for
payment shall be properly completed and signed. Requests for payments must be for allowable
costs only as defined in 2 CFR Part 200, as amended. No requests for advance payment will be
accepted by the State.

5.8. Upon receipt of the request for payment, the State shall review the request to determine the
allowability of costs. In connection with this review, the State may demand production of (and
the Grantee shall produce) and inspect any documents and records described in Section 7.

5.9. Within 30 days of receipt of the request for payment and other documents and records required
by the State, the State shall determine the allowability of costs and the amount due and owing to
the Grantee and shall pay said amount, subject to other provisions of this Agreement.

5.10. Final Payment. Satisfactory acceptance by the State and FTA of all reports required by this
Agreement is a condition precedent to final payment (i.e., payment for the last month or portion
thereof of this Agreement). All reports will be prepared to the satisfaction of the State and Federal
Transit Administration (FTA). The final payment may be retained and withheld pending receipt
and satisfactory acceptance of all reports required by this Agreement and resolution of all pending
matters.

A.3. Amend G-1 Section 6. "COMPLIANCE BY GRANTEE WITH LAWS AND

REGULATIONS" by adding the following:

6.3. The provisions of 2 CFR 200, as amended shall apply to local administration of this agreement
and any subgrantee under this agreement.

6.4. The Grantee agrees to comply with and ensure compliance by any subgrantees, or consultants,
with all federal and state laws, rules, regulations, and policies as applicable, including but not
limited to:

6.4.1. Third Party Procurement Guidelines. The Grantee shall comply with the Uniform
Administrative Requirements 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular 4220.1F as amended.
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6.4.2. The Grantee will ensure that professional services other than architectural and engineering
services are obtained through sealed bids, competitive proposals, or (as the Grant value
warrants) small purchase or micro-purchase procedures in accordance with FTA
procurement requirements.

6.4.3. , Prompt Payment. The Grantee shall submit invoices to the State for eighty percent (80%)
of the amounts to be paid by the Grantee to subgrantees for the performance of the work
set forth herein and certify that the invoices properly represent payment for completed
work.

6.4.3.1. The Grantee shall abide by NHDOT Prompt Payment requirements to sub grantees
and/or material suppliers, which requires (all tiers) to pay their
subgrantees/material supplier/consultants for the satisfactory work performed no
later than twenty-one (21) calendar days from the date the Grantee receives the
payment from NHDOT, or the applicable subgrantee receives payment from the
Grantee.

6.4.3.2. The Grantee and its applicable subgrantee/contractors shall report their payments
using a form and instructions provided or otherwise specified by NHDOT's Office
of Access, Opportunity, and Compliance (OAOC) and submitting it to OAOC no
later than the 10"' day of each month. The current form is OAOC Form 12.

6.4.4. in the event of any conflict between the requirements within this Exhibit related to Federal
requirements and Federal Clauses incorporated elsewhere into the Agreement, the Federal
Clauses take precedence.

6.5. General Federal requirements. The Grantee shall comply with the provisions outlined m the
FTA's Annual Certifications and Assurances, Master Agreements, Federal Circulars, Federal
Clauses, and all other ap(»licablc fcUcial laws.

6.5.1 The Grantee shall require all contracts/subcontracts to include notifications of the Federal
Clauses (and as amended), including certificates for Lobbying and Debarment, outlined in
the Federal Clauses attached herein.

A.4. Amend G-i Section 9. "DATA; RETENTION OF DATA; ACCESS" by adding the following:

9.6. The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of this
agreement;

9.6.1 Except for its own internal use, the Grantee may not publish or reproduce such data in
whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Grantee authorize others to do so,
without the written consent of the State, until such time as the FTA may have either
released or approved the release of such data to the public.

9.6.2 As authorized by 2 CFR 200, the FTA reserves a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and
irrevocable license to reproduce, publish and otherwise use, and to authorize others to use,
for Federal purposes, any work developed under a grant, cooperative agreement, subgranl,
or third party grant, irrespective of whether a copyright has been obtained; and any rights
of copyright to which a recipient, sub-recipient, or third party contractor purchases
ownership with Federal assistance.

9.7. it is FTA's intent to increase the body of mass transportation knowledge. Therefore, the Grantee
understands and agrees that in addition to the rights set forth in 9.6 above, FTA may make
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available to any recipient, subgrantee, grantee, or subgrantee its license in the copyright to the
date derived under this Agreement or a copy of the data first produced under this Agreement.

9.8. The Grantee shall indemnify, save, and hold harmless the State and United States, their officers,
agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any liability,
including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation of the proprietary
rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication; translation, reproduction,
delivery," use, or disposition of any data furnished under this Agreement.

9.9. Nothing contained in this clause shall imply a license to the United States under any patent or be
construed as affecting the scope of any license or other right otherwise granted to the United
States under any patent.

9.10. Sections 9.4, 9.5, and 9.6 are not applicable to material furnished to the Grantee by the State or
United States and incorporated in the work furnished under the agreement; provided that such
incorporated material is identified by the Grantee at the time of delivery of such work.

9.11. In the event that the project is not completed for any reason, all data developed under the project
shall become subject Data as defined in Section 9.1 and shall be delivered as the State or FTA
may direct.

A.5. Amend G-1 Section 12. "TERMINATION" by adding the following:

12.5. The termination report must be accepted by the State and the Federal I ransit Administration
(FTA) prior to final payment.

12.6. Completion of Services; Payment of Price, txcepting those obligations of the Grantee which, by
the terms of this Agreement, do not expire on the Completion Date, upon the completion Of the
Services and upon payment of the Grant Price, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall cease and shall be without recourse to the parties hereto.

12.7. Termination for Convenience. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either
the State or, except where notice of default has been given to the Grantee hereunder, the Grantee
may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days written notice

A.6. Amend G-1 Section 15. "ASSIGNMENTS/AND/SUBGRANTEES" by adding the following:

15.1. The Grantee shall cause the provisions of this grant to be inserted in all subgrants/subcontracts
for any work covered by this Agreement so that the provisions will be binding on each
subgrantee; provided, however, that the foregoing provisions shall not apply to subgrantees for
standard commercial supplies or raw materials. The Grantee shall take such action with respect
to any subcontract as the State may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including
sanctions for noncompliance. The Grantee shall ensure that any subgrantee has obtained all
licenses, permits or approvals required for the performance of grant services.

15.2. The following provisions apply for any agreements entered itito by the Grantee:

15.2.1. The Grantee, as a subrecipient of FTA funding, shall be responsible for
contractor/subcontractor compliance with Federal, State, and local requirements. This
includes, but is not limited to, ensuring that applicable Federal Clauses are incorporated
into any agreements.

15.2.2 Written approval by NHDOT's Office of Access, Opportunity, and Compliance (OAOC)
is required prior to entering into any contractor/subcontractor agreements.
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A.7. Amend G-1 by adding "DEFINITIONS" as Section 25:

25. DEFINITIONS

25.1 ALLOWABLE COSTS: Costs that are incurred in the performance of the Services described in
Exhibit B and which satisfy the requirements of 2 CFR 200.

25.2 EQUIPMENT: An article of nonexpendable, tangible personal having a useful life of more than
one year and an acquisition cost which equals or exceeds the lesser of the capitalization level
established by the governmental unit for financial statement purposes, or $5,000. Includes roiling
stock and all other such property used in the provision of public transit services.

25.3 FTA: U.S. Department of Transportation, Federal Transit Administration

25.4 PROJECT APPLICATION: The narrative, charts, figures, and/or maps submitted to the Stale
detailing the scope of the public transportation program of the Grant as modified and approved
by the State.

25.5 REVENUE: Fares from individuals or other direct income for the public transportation services
being provided by the Grantee. Revenues also include funds from Grants, purchase of service
agreement, and excess matching funds that directly benefit the transportation service.

25.6 SECTION 5339: FTA's Bus and Bus Facilities Formula Program of Moving Ahead for Progress
in the 21" Century Act (Map-21) of 2012, as amended.

25.7 STATE: The State of New Hampshire, acting through the Department of Transportation, Bureau
of Rail and Transit.

A.8. Amend G-I by adding "ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING, AND REPORTING
REQUIREMENTS" as Section 26:

26. ACCOUNTING, BOOKKEEPING, AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

26.1. Ledgers. Grantee and/or subcontractor shall establish and maintain ledger sheets for each budget
category. Entries shall be made and shall reflect the financial activities of the Grantee. The ledger
sheet must be in a form approved by the State. The ledger will indicate the funds remaining in
each line item of the Grant Budget at the beginning of each month. Entries shall be made on a
running basis and carried over to the following month; that is, figures will be brought forward
cumulatively. Grantee shall also prepare and submit to the State a profit and loss statement
quarterly if such information is not provided with invoices.

26.2. Accounts Receivable. Grantee and/or subcontractor shall deposit all revenue in an interest-
bearing account with a banking institution in this State. Grantee shall prepare and maintain receipt
vouchers for all revenue. Immediately upon receipt, Grantee and/or subcontractor shall credit all
revenue to the appropriate receipt account. Grantee and/or subcontractor shall establish and
maintain an Accounts Receivable Ledger. The receipt number appearing in the Ledger shall
correspond to the receipt voucher number. A receipt voucher must be completed on a form
approved by the State and shall identify each component of every deposit. All appropriate
supporting documents for each deposit should be attached to the receipt voucher.

26.3. Payables. Grantee and/or subcontractor shall prepare vouchers to document all expenditures of
funds. The voucher shall include the following information and shall be prepared on a form
approved by the State: The Division and account numbers from which the funds will be drawn,
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the date of expenditure, a voucher number running in sequence, and any appropriate comments
supporting the expenditure of funds (e.g., invoices and payroll vouchers). All invoices received
by the Grantee shall be checked for accuracy and allowability. Each invoice must be approved
for payment by the Grant Manager or designee. Immediately upon payment. Grantee and/or
subcontractor shall make entries to the appropriate ledger sheets documenting payment. (Each
subcontractor shall identify a Contract Manager). ....

26.4." Vo.ucher and Receipt Register. Grantee and/or subcontractor shall establish and maintain two
registers that will contain a running total of all payable receipt vouchers. The registers will
provide a summary of voucher or receipt numbers, amount, and purpose of action. No self-
designated abbreviations are to be used.

26.5. Check Register. Grantee and/or subcontractor shall maintain a check register. This register is
also considered a book of original entries and is posted to the ledger immediately.

26.6. Time Sheet, Taxes, and Benefits. Grantee and/or subcontractor shall require each of its
employees to 1) submit weekly time reports designating work performed and time spent on such
work, or 2) be included in an indirect cost allocation plan approved by the cognizant Federal
agency. The Grantee shall summarize time reports by task and apply the employee's rates of pay
to the hours worked. The Grant Manager shall review completed and signed time reports and
cause them to be posted to the appropriate category in the general ledger. The Grantee shall
maintain records of employee payroll and benefits and shall post this information to the
appropriate category in the general ledger. The Grant Manager shall ensure that all payments are
on a timely basis.

26.7. Reimbursements. On a monthly basis, the Grantee shall submit a description of Grant activities,
in a format as required by the State. Should the Grantee show a profit for any month, the Grantee
shall apply the amount of profit against subsequent reimbursement requests. The Grantee shall
agree to provide information in addition to the monthly narrative at such times and in such
manner as the State may require, and to prepare any reports which may be requested by the State
including but not limited to a final or termination report if operations cease.

26.8. Maintenance of Records. The Grantee shall keep and maintain the records, documents, and
accounts described herein for a period of three years after the FTA grant is closed. The Grantee
shall maintain, and make available to the State and FTA, records relating to complaints and
comments received from the public. In the event the State disputes the Grantee's operations or
records as submitted for payment or otherwise, final resolution shall rest with the State.

26.9. Audits and Inspections. Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date, and for a period
of three (3) years after the FTA grant is closed or the date of the resolution of all matters relating
to this Agreement, whichever is later, at any time during the Grantee's normal business hours,
and as often as the State or FTA may demand, the Grantee shall make available to the State and
FTA or their designees all records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee
shall permit the State and FTA to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make audits
of all grants, contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel. Data (as defined in G-
1 section 9.1), and other information relating to all matters covered by this Agreement. As used
in this paragraph," Grantee " includes all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled
by, or under common ownership with, the entity identified as the Grantee in 1.3 of G-1.

26.10. General Transit Feed Specification (GFTS). The Grantee shall generate and keep updated
General Transit Feed Specification (GTFS) data and submit related data for reporting to the
National Transit Database (NTD) as required. The Grantee shall submit related data to the
Department upon request.
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26.10.1 The Bipartisan Infrastructure Law amended 49 U.S.C. 5335 (a) to require the Federal
Transit Administration to collect "geographic service area coverage" data through
the NTD.

26.1 1. . Independent Audit. The Grantee shall submit one audit done by one Certified Public Accountant
(CPA) for the entire project, or, as the State may require, for any part of the project upon demand.
Monies required for payment of the audit shall be set aside in the Grant Budget for that specific
purpose.

26.1 1.1 in the event the audit reveals that monies are due and owing to the State from the
Grantee, for whatever reasons, the Grantee shall pay to the State such sums within
thirty (30) days of the audit date.

26.12. Reporting. The Grantee shall submit quarterly performance, drug and alcohol, and charter
activity reports within 30 days of the end of each quarter and shall submit any forms, information,
or reports required by the State to complete the FTA's National Transit Database (NTD)
reporting.

A.9. Amend G-l by adding "PROJECT EQUIPMENT" as Section 27:

27. PROJECT EQUIPMENT. The following terms and conditions apply to all equipment
purchased in whole or in part with funds provided through this or other Agreements between the
State and the Grantee;

27.1. All procurements shall be made in accordance with 2 CFR 200 and FTA Circular 4220.IF as
amended.

27.2. All other equipment with a cost in excess of five hundred ($500) per unit shall be purchased by
the Grantee subject to the prior approval of the State.

27.3. In the event that this agreement is terminated, all project equipment and property become the
property of the State and it is understood and agreed that legal title to such equiprnent shall be
transferred to the State as soon as feasible. Project equipment will be disposed of in accordance
with FTA Circular 9040. IG and the State Management Plan unless written approval is received
from the State, or most recent, and the State Management Plan and as outlined in A.4
"Termination".

A.IO. Amend G-l by adding "EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION" as section 28:

28. EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATION. The Grantee shall maintain a current inventory listing of
all nonexpendable property involved in this Agreement. The Grantee shall submit to the State a
certification that the equipment is still being used in accordance with the terms of the Agreement.
The inventory listing and equipment certification shall be supplied to the State by each year,
generally by June 30'*^.

A.11. Amend G-l by adding "REAL PROPERTY/EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE" as section 29:

29. REAL PROPERTY/EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE. The Grantee shall be responsible for
the maintenance and repair of all real property and equipment used in the service described in
Exhibit B. The Grantee shall maintain all such property/equipment at a high level of cleanliness,
safety, and mechanical soundness. The Grantee shall certify that a proper maintenance plan that
meets or exceeds the original equipment manufacturer's preventive maintenance guidelines is
followed. Vehicle maintenance plans must be approved by the Board of Directors. All
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maintenance, repair, and physical improvement activities on equipment shall be conducted by
the Grantee and at a location specified by the Grantee. The Grantee shall notify the State of any
changes in this location. The Grantee further agrees to maintain, repair, or make any physical
improvement to equipment as requested by the State. The State, FTA, and/or their designees shall
have the right to conduct periodic inspections for the purpose of confirming proper maintenance
•and repair.

A.12. Amend G-1 by adding "PATENT RIGHTS" as section 30:

30. PATENT RIGHTS. If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Grantee is conceived or
first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under this grant, which invention,
improvement, or discovery may be patentable under the laws of the United States or any foreign
country, the Grantee shall immediately notify the State and provide a detailed report. The rights
and responsibilities of the Grantee and the Stale with respect to such invention, improvement, or
discovery will be determined in accordance with applicable Federal laws, regulations, policies,
and any waiver thereof.

A.13. Amend G-1 by adding "BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION" as section 31:

31. BROKERAGE REPRESENTATION. The Grantee warrants that it has not employed or
retained any company or person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Grantee,
to solicit or secure this Agreement; and that it has not paid or agreed to pay any company or
person, other than a bona-fide employee working solely for the Grantee, any fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage fee, gifts or any other consideration, contingent upon or resulting from the
award or making of this Agreement. For breach or violation of this warranty, the State shall have
the right to annul this Agreement without liability or, in its discretion to deduct from the
Agreement price or coasideration, or otherwi.se recover, the full amount of such fee, commission,
percentage, brokerage, brokerage fee, gift, or contingent fee.

A.14. Amend G-1 by adding "REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS" as Section 32:

32. REPAIR RECORDS AND REPORTS. The Grantee shall maintain a complete and up to date
record of all real property and equipment and shall make such records available to the State and
FTA upon demand.

A.I5. Amend G-1 by adding "GRANT REPRESENTATIONS" as Section 33:

33. GRANT REPRESENTATIONS. Grantee warrants that with respect to the Services to be
performed, it has obtained all licenses, permits, or approvals which are required by any law,
order, or regulation of any authority, state or federal, or which may be necessary for the
performance of the Services hereunder. The Grantee warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Services shall be qualified to perform such Services and shall be properly licensed and authorized
to perform such Services under all applicable laws.

A.16. Amend G-1 by adding "LABOR PROVISIONS" as Section 34:

34. LABOR PROVISIONS. The Grantee agrees to adhere to the terms and conditions of the Unified
Protective Arrangement, Section 533(b) of 49 USC 53, as amended, incorporated herein for the
protection of the employees of any employer providing transportation services assisted by this
Agreement, and the employees of any other surface transportation providers in the transportation
service area identified in Exhibit B.



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES, INC.
EXHIBIT B

SCOPE OF SERVICES

B.l CAPITAL PURCHASES

1.1 The Grantee, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. (hereinafter the "Grantee"), will
procure the following capital items for use in accordance with requirements associated with
its FTA Section 5339 Bus and Bus Facilities program funding within the State:

I. r:i ITS Equipment Base Computer-Aided Dispatch (CAD)'software. The CAD software may
include features such as Automatic Vehicle Location (AVL) + Real-Time System +
Automated Voice Announcements (AVA) as funding allows. The software package is a
communications and operational/passenger real-time information system that will
improve agency communication with riders and enhance scheduling and dispatching
efficiency. The ITS system is an eligible capital expense under Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) guidelines.

I. I. I. I Maintenance/support of the software for up to five years is eligible to the
extent it is an eligible capital expense under the FTA Section 5339
program.

1.1.2 One ADA-Compliant bus shelter, located in the City of Claremont. The cost of the shelter
is an eligible capital expense under FTA guidelines and will protect transit riders from the
elements.

1. 1.3 One (I) ADA-accessible minivan, which is an eligible capital expense under Federal
Transit Administration (FTA) guidelines. The minivan will be part of expansion service
in Claremont to accommodate increased passenger demand.

1.2 Grant funding for all projects will be provided by the State as shown in Exhibit C.

1.3 The Grantee will purchase the capital equipment in compliance with all applicable FTA
regulations and guidance including FTA Circular 4220.1F, "Third Party Contracting
Guidance," or as amended.

1.4 Prior to any capital procurement, the Grantee shall submit appropriate procurement
documentation demonstrating compliance with Federal procurement requirements, including
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Third Party Procurement guidelines per FTA Circular
4220.1F, or as amended, to the State for review and approval. Such documentation may
include, but is not limited to, the following:

1:4.1 The Grantee will provide verification of utilizing NH's Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise (DBE) directory to invite DBEs to vie for the procurement;

1.4.2 The Grantee will include necessary FTA Clauses/certifications that will be required to be
acknowledged by the vendor;

1.4.3 The Grantee will provide evidence of appropriate procurement methodology
demonstrating fair and open competition, e.g., small procurement, Request for Proposals
(RFP);

1.4.4 Upon written approval, the Grantee may proceed with the procurement and submit an
invoice to the State for reimbursement of project expenses in compliance with FTA



guidance.

1.5 Upon the conclusion of the procurement, the Grantee shall submit final documentation to the
State.

1.6 The Grantee may submit a written request to the State's contracting officer to modify the type
and/or quantity of the capital equipment detailed .in the scope and budget, provided that said
changes are within the grant budget amount. Said written request must contain sufficient details
to support and substantiate the requested change(s). Within 30 days of receipt of the Grantee's
written request, the State will provide a written decision to the Grantee as to whether or not '
approval is granted.

1.7 The Grantee shall adhere to the terms and conditions applicable to State Capital Match funds.

1.7.! State Capital Match funds shall be used to provide a portion of the non-Federal Funds
required to match Federal Transit Administration (FTA) capital funds for public
transportation services provided by the Grantee.



SOUTHWESTERN COMIVIUNITY SERVICES INC.

EXHIBIT C

BUDGET

C.-l The Grant Limitation price, as defined in Section 1.8 of the General Provisions, is
comprised of the FTA Section 5539 program portions of the eligible project costs as well as
State Capital Match funds. Federal and State funds are granted as follows:

SPY 2023 Total Federal
FTA

Percent

State Local

FTA Section 5339 Project FTA Capital Agency

Capita! Projects Costs 5339 Match Match

1. ADA minivan $85,000 $72,250 85% $6,375 $6,375

2. Dispatching software $298,000 $238,400 80% $0 $59,600

3. Bus Shelter $20,000 $16,000 80% $2,000 $2,000

Total Funding $403,000! $326,650 $8,375. $67i975

Total Grant Funds T:$335,025 ; ■

C.2

1.1 Funds are contingent upon Federal and State appropriations.

1.2 As applicable. State Capital Match funds are contingent upon the Grantee's
acceptance of any State requirements associated with their utilization.

1.3 As applicable, Slate Capital Match funds are contingent upon the Grantee's
acceptance of any State requirements associated with their utilization.

1.4 The Grant will provide funding through the State, from the FTA Section 5339 Bus
and Bus Facilities Program, as detailed in the table above, for 85% of the cost
related to Project 1, not to exceed $72,250 Federal funding and 7.5% State Capital
Match funds not to exceed $6,375. The Grantee will pay non-federal match of
7.5% estimated at $6,375 for a total estimated project cost of $85,000.

1.5 The Grant will provide funding through the State, from the FTA Section 5339 Bus
and Bus Facilities Program, as detailed in the table above, for 80% of the cost
related to Project 2, not to exceed $238,400 Federal funding. The Grantee will pay
a non-federal match of 20% estimated at $59,600, for a total project cost of
$298,000. No State Capital Match funds will be provided.

1.6 The Grant will provide funding through the State, from the FTA Section 5339 Bus
and Bus Facilities Program, as detailed in the table above, for 80% of the cost
related to Project 3, not to exceed $16,000 Federal funding and 10% State Capital
Match funds not to exceed $2,000. The Grantee will pay a non-federal match of
10% estimated at $2,000 for a total estimated cost of $20,000.

The Grantee shall submit appropriate procurement documentation to the State for review
and approval prior to any procurement. Upon approval, the Grantee may proceed with the
procurement and submit an invoice to the NHDOT for reimbursement.



3.1 The Grantee may seek reimbursement of project expenses in compliance with
Federal guidance, including FTA Third Party Procurement guidelines per FTA
Circular 4220.1F or most recent, and shall ensure that each invoice includes

• verification of sources of local agency matching funds and clearly states the
" amount of FTA 5339 funds and State Capital Match funds requested.



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES INC.

EXHIBIT D

VEHICLE LIST

2016 (Model Yr. 2017) Ford E450 10&2 Passenger Bus 1FDEE3FS2HDC0I149

2016 Ford E350 8 & 2 Passenger Bus #1723 1FDEE3FSXGDC57859

2017 #450 Ford 12 & 2 Passenger 1FDFE4FS4HDC49297

2018 Ford E-450 1FDFE4FS9KDC07327

2019 Ford E450SD 12&2 1FDFE4FS2KDC71435

2021 Ford E450 14&2 POI076614 1FDFE4FN0MDC14275

2021 Ford E-450 14&2 PO1076614 IFDFE4FN9MDC18373



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

i, David M. SciHilan. Secrciaiy ofState of Ihe State ofNew Mainpshire, do hereby certity that SOUTIIWESTERN COMMUNITY

SERVICES. INC. is u New l lainp.shire Nonprolli Corporation registered to iran.sact bn.siness in New Mampshire on May 19, 1965.

I further ccriiry that all Ices and documents required by the Secretary of Slate's office have been received and is in good standing

as far a.s this ofilce is concemed.

Business ID: 65514

Certillcate Number: 1)006663003

0/2-

%

o

^5,

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be afli.Kcd

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 9th day of April A D. 2024,

David M. Scanlan

Secretarv ofSlate



CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

1, Kevin Watterson hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Clerk/Secretary/Officer of Corporation/LLC)

1. I am a duly elected ClerkySecretary/Officer of Southwestern Communitv Services Inc. • • •
(Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on June 18 2021 at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

(Date)

VOTED: That Beth Daniels. CEO (may list more than one person)
(Name and Title of Contract Signatory)

is duty authorized on behalf of Southwestern Communitv Services Inc. to enter into contracts or agreements with
(Name of Corporation/ LLC)

the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to execute any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To me extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in^contracts \w)th tlfie State^^f New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: 5/2/2024
Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Kevin Watterson

Title: Chairperson

Rev. 03/24/20



AOORcf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE DATE (MM/DO/YYYY)

12/19/2023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHOfilZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

UPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(s).

>RODUCER

The Hilb Group New England. LLC

PO Box 606

Keene NH 03431

CONTACT Ana O'Donnell. CPIW, GIG

(877)352-2121 ' ' ' PaX
(A/C. No):

AMRESS- aodonnelt@hilt>group.com

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC •

INSURER A
Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co 18058

INSURED ''

Southwestern Community Services Inc.

63 Community Way

PO Box 603

Keene NH 03431

INSURER B
Granite State'Healthcare & Human Services Trust

INSURER C
-

INSURER 0

INSURER E

INSURER F

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 24/25 REVISION NUMBER:

NSR
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. N0TWITHST/V4DING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO lAfHlCH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSUR/V>/CE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

POLICY EXPAoULSUB? POUCY EFF
LIMITSTYPE OF INSURANCE

X

INSD

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

CLAIMS-MADE XI OCCUR

GENt AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY

OTHER:

X LOC

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

ANY AUTOX

X

OWNED

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED

AUTOS ONLY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

DEO

SCHEDULED
AUTOS

NON-OWNED

AUTOS ONLY

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MADE

X RETENTION S 10-000
WORKERS COMPENSATION

AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY'

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?
(Mandatory In NH)
II yes, dMcnba undor
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

0

ms. POLICY NUMBER

PHPK2636316

PHPK2e36315

PHUBa93672

HCHS20242000036

(MM/DO/YYYY)

01/01/2024

01/01/2024

01/01/2024

01/01/2024

(MM/0D/YYYY1

01/01/2025

01/01/2025

01/01/2025

01/01/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE

OAMACe TOftENILU
PREMISES (Ea occufrence)

MED EXP (Any one peraon)

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG

Professional Liability

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea accidenU

BODILY INJURY (Per person)

BODILY INJURY (Per accident)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
_{Per_8ccldent^^_____

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

X
PER
STATUTE

OTH
ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

1,000.000

100.000

5.000

1,000.000

2,000.000

2,000.000

1fn/2m

1.000.000

2.000.000

2.000.000

1.000,000

1.000,000

1.000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS I LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORO 101, Additional Remark* Scheduli. may be atUched If more space I* required)

3a State: NH, All officers included. This certificate is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate
does not amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by the policies referenced herein.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

NH Department of Transportation Bureau of Rail & Tr

PO Box 483

Concord NH 03302

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

® 1988-2015 ACORO CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



CertiUcalions: and Assurances * Fiscal Year-2024

FEDER>VL FISCAL YEAR 2024 CERTIFICATIONS AND ASSUR>\NCES FOR FTA

ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

(Signature pages altemaie to providing Ccrlillcations and Assurances in TrAMS.)

Naine of Applicant: S(>/{/icesJnr.

The Applicant cerlirics to the applicable provisions of all categories: {check here)

Or.

The Applicant certifies to the iipplicahle prov isii>ns of the categories it has selected:

Category Certification

01 Certifications and Assurances llequircd of Every Applicant

02 Public Transportation Agency Safety Plans

03 Tax Liability and Felony Convictions

04 Lobbying

05 Private Sector Protections

06 Transit Asset Management Plan

07 Rolling Stock Buy America Reviews and Bus Testing

OS Urbanized Area Formula Grants Program

09 Formula Grants for Rural Areas

10 Fixed Guideway Capital Investment Grants and the Expedited
Project Delivery for Capital investment Grants Pilot Program

1 1 Grants for Buses and Bus Facilities and Low or No Emission

Vehicle Deployment Grant Programs



Certifications and Assurances - ■ Fiscal Year 2024

12 Enhanced Mobility ofScniors and individuals with Disabilities
Programs

13 State of Good Repair Grants

14 infrastructure Finance Programs

15 Aicohoi and Controlled Substances Testing

16 Rail Safety Training and Oversight

I 7 Demand Responsive Service

18 interest and Financing Costs

19 Cybersccurity Certification for Rail Rolling Stock and
Operations

20 Tribal Transit Programs

21 Emergency Relief Program

CKK I IKICA I lUiNS AM) ASSURANCKS SICNA 1 URK PACK

ArriRMATION OF AE»P1JCANT

Name oftlic Applicant;

BY SiGNINCi BI-.t-OW. on l>chairol ilK' Applicant, I cicclaiv tltat it has duly auihorizcd mc to make these
Ccnitlcaiions and Assurances and bind its compliance. Thus, it agrees to comply witli all tederal laws, reuulations,
and requirements, follow applieahle federal guidance, and comply with the Ceiiiticaiions and Assurances as
indicated oil tlic foregoing page applieable to each application its AuiIkh izeil Repieseiitalive makes to the Fedetal
Transii Adniinistiatiun (FTA) in the federal fiseai year, irrcspeetive nl whether the iiKlividiia! that acted on his oi
her Applieanl's bclKiirei»ntiiuies to reprcsenl it.

The Cctiilleations and Assurances tlic .Applicant selects apply to each Awai'il lor wiiieh it now seeks, or may
latct seek federal assistance to be awarded by FTA during tlie fedetal tiseal year.

The Applicant afTirnus the truthfulness and acciirocy of the Cetlitications and Assiinmces it has .selected in the
statements submitted with this document and any other SLibmis.sion made to i- FA. and acknowledges that the
rrogtam Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986. 31 U-S.C. $ 3801 cis.y.. and implementing U.S. DOT tegulalions.
"Progtiim Ftaud Civil Remedies." 49 CFR pan 31. apply to any ccnilicalion. assuianee of submission made to
FTA. Tlie crimittal provisions of IS U.S.C. $ 1001 apply to any ceriillcation. assurance, or submission made in
connection with a fcdci'ui public transportation program authorized by 49 U.S.t.. chapter 5.' or any otiier siaiulc

rwc



Certifications.and Assurances ^ Fiscal Year 2024

In signing ihis docunicni. I declare under penalties or|>eriur.' that the Ibregning Ceriillcation.s and Assurances, and

any uthcr sialeinent.s made by me on bchali'of the Applicant are Hue and accumte.

Siuiialuic ^ Dale: _0 3/0 5 JQ H
Name R/'fh f CEQ Authorized Representative of Applicant



FFY 2022 MASTER AGREEMENT

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF RECEIPT

The Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Federal Fiscal Year 2022 Master Agreement
requires recipients and subrecipients to comply with the requirements contained in the
agreement in order to receive Federal funds. The language contained in the Master
Agreement must be incorporated into the administration of the agreement my agency has
with the New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT).

1 acknowledge receipt of the FFY 2022 Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Master
Agreement and understand this agreement is referred to in my agency's agreement with
NHDOT by reference. The Master Agreement remains in force for the term of the
agreement.

LbmrrmduImm.M.
Name of Agency I Date

f^d-hPnni/ls f^EO
Name of Authorized Ufficial Signature



Hr.^ftmrut uJTtnHntonnt>M>

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement

Name oj Awarding Af^ency: Federal Transit Adminislration (FTA) .

Name of Recipient Agency: New Hampshire Department of Transportation (NHDOT)

Name of Suhrecipient Agency: Southwestern Communif)' Services, Inc.

Southwestern Community Services. Inc., shall comply with ul) applicable federal laws,
regulations, and requirements as outlined in the most recent federal Transit Adminislration
(FTA) Master Agreement and Federal Cerli ncalions and Assurances. This award includes
information required by 2 CFR Part 200 as follows:

FTA award project description: (As required to be responsive to the Federal Funding Accoun/ahilily and
Transparency Act (FFA TA)

Amount: $72,250 and $238,400 for a total of $310,650

Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CDFA) number: 20.526
FTA Award Name: FTA SECTION 5339 BUS & BUS FACIUTIES PROGRAM

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN); NH-2022-013 and NH-2023-003

Federal Award Date; 8/4/22 and 8/03/2023

Contact information for sub-awarding official:

Name: Frederick Butler Title: Public Transportation Administrator
Email: Frederick.J.Butler@dot.nh.gov Phone; 603-271-2565
is this award for research and development? No
NHDOT's cost rate for the federal award: N/A

Subrccipicnt Information:

Subrecipient Name: Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
Subrecipient SAM.GOV ID: HMUUXK8MBJC3

Name of authorizing subrecipient ofUcial: Beth Daniels

Title ol'authorizing subrecipient ofUcial: Chief Executive Otiicer
Federal Clauses: N/A

Master Agreement/Certifications and Assurances; Yes
Subrecipient Federal indirect cost rate; 12%
(An approved federally recognized indirect cost rale negotiated between the suhrecipient and the federal
('iovernntcni or. if no such rate exists, either a rate negotiated herween the pass-through entity and the suhrecipient
(in compliance with this part), or a l)e Minimis indirect cost rate as ilcfincd in 14 Indirect. (hdc.A! costs,
paragraph (/)).

Subaward Period of performance:

Start Date: TBD End Date: 6/30/28



fyflvj ft-

FTA and 2 CFR 200 Agreement Revised 11/10/2020

Total amount of FTA sub-award obligated by this action (contract/amtinilmenO:

For FFY: 2024 Section: 5339 Anioimt: $3!0.650

Total amount of FTA stib-award committed to the suhrecinienf. (ori^innlcontmcf A anmuhuems):

For FFY:.2024 Section: 5339 Amounl $3 10.650

Pass-through requirements:

The subrecipient. Southwestern Community Services. Inc.. agrees to meet all requirement
imposed by the pass-through entity (NFIDOT) on the subrecipient so that the Federal award is
used in accordance with Federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the Federal
award.

The subrecipient. Southwestern Community Services. Inc., agrees to any additional requirements
that the pass-through entity (NFIDOT) imposes on the subrecipient in order for the pass-through
entity (NFIDOT) in order for the pass-through entity (NFIDOT) to meet its own responsibility to
the Federal awarding agency (FTA) including identiUcalion of any required llnancial and
performance reports.

The subrecipient. Southwestern Community Services, Inc.. agrees to permit the pass-through
entity (NFIDOT) and auditors to have access to the subrecipients records and financial statements
as necessary for the pass-through entity to meet the requircmejUs of this part: and appropriate
terms and conditions concerning closeout of the subaward.

Dale: Q5/Q3/^V
Name of authorizing subrecipient ofllciai: Beth Daniels

Title of authorizing subrecipient ofllciai: Chief Executive Officer

Signature of authorizing subrecipient official:



Internal Revenue Sv./., ;ce
.  -District Director

Data: J/\[^ 0 5 13''^

uepartment.of the Jrer'^'fy
j ?.o. nhr.-voi'i

PO.-.T OFFICE

I BOS'XON,
|«c

•02203

Person to Contact:

Marilyn Hamilton
Contact Telephone Number:

(617) 223-1498

SouHiweotern Community Semdces, Inc«
40 Mechanic Street
Keene, New Hampshire 03431

Date of Exemption: March, 1966
Internal Revenue Code Section: 501(c)(3)

Gentlemen:

Thank you for submitting the information shown below. We have made

it a part of your file.

,The changes indicated do not adversely affect your exempt status
and the exemption letter issued to you continues in effect.

Please let us know about any future change in the character,
purpose, method:of operation, name or address of your organization.
This is a requirement for retaining your exempt status.

Thank you for your cooperation.

Sinceirely yours,

?yp?.rnr -O

Item Changed

Name

District Director

From

Sullivan and Cheshire

County Comnainity vVction
Associates

To

Southwestern

Community Services,
Inc.

JFK Federal BIdg., Boston, Mass. 02203 Letter 976 (DO) (7-77)



637Form

(Rev. July"i973) *■

Deptrtrntnt of tho Trniury
Inltrnil Revonuo Strvico

Registration for Tax-Free Transactions
Under Chapter 32 of the Internal Rqye^ue Code

This Application Should Also Be Used by Producers arid Importers
of Gasoline and Manufacturers of Lubricating Oil

JUL 8 .1974
For District Director's Use Only

1^0. Q2-7tf-Q051-I

&

S
a
o

S

Name of individual, corporation, partnerstiip, association, etc.

Name under vrhlch business is operated

Business address (Number and street)

City, State, and ZIP code

•So^ar*^'uf%'or Employer Identification Number
02-6013S03- •
Will you be required
to file Form 720? . □ Yes □ No

File this application In duplicate
with your District Director of Internal
Revenue. See the instructions on
pages 2 and 4.

Application is hereby made for a Certificate of Registry in the name(s) indicated above. The applicant is a:
Q Selling or Q Purchasing (specify type of

product)

D Manufacturer Q Producer Q Importer Q Wholesaler Q Jobber
Q Retailer Q Other (specify)
The applicant affirms that use of articles purchased or ..uio tax-free is to be for the exempt purposes specified in the applicable provi
sions of the law and regulations and understands that misuse of this certificate will lead to Its revocation and/or the penalties provided by
law.
See Item 2 on page 2 and check applicable letter(s). I qualify as a:
□ a, □ b. □ c, □ d, □ e, □ f, □ g, □ h, [g I, □ □ k. □ I, □ m. and/or Q n (other—specify) ►

Und»f th« ol ptrjuiy, I dtclara ttwt I hiva uimlntd thlf ■ppliHilon ind to thi b»t ol my knowltdgo ond btllof It l> truo, cerroci, and complatt.

Slgnatur TItIo

alida
Date

District Director's Validation
A cartlflcata of rtglatry for the above applicant is approved and issued under the number shown.

Frank Murphy c- / 7-5-7it^  ,.1... DeteDistrict Director ot internal Revenue Russell E) Msrsereau, Chief, Revleid Staff
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 'jOvkic • CDN'cOkh
STk/VniAM

To the Board of Directors of

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Southwestern
Community Services. Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation) and related companies,
which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of May 31, 2022, and the
related consolidated statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and. related companies as of May
31, 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent
of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
Slates of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies' ability to continue as a going
concern within one year after the date that the consolidated financial statements are available
to be issued.

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards will always delect a material misstaterhent when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal coritrol. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user
based on the consolidated financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
and related companies' internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

.j

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Southwestern Community Seryices, Inc.
and related companies' ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, ,the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings; and certain
internal controbrelated matters that we identified during the audit.



Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies'
2021 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited
financial statements in our report dated October 22, 2021. In our opinion, the summarized
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended May 31. 2021.. is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as
required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements. The inforrhation has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial staterhents and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the
consolidated financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 9. 2023. on our consideration of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws,.regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
February 9. 2023



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

MAY 31.2022 AND 2021

ASSETS

2022 2021

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, nel

Prepaid expenses

Tola! curreni assets

PROPERTY

Land and buildings
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Total properly

Less accumulated depreciation

Property, nel

OTHER ASSETS

Investment in related parties
Due from related parties
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Security.deposits
Other assets

Total other assets

Total assets

3.153.976

1.745.952
243.990

5.143.918

20.859.136

555,554

958.072

31.372,762

15.527.483

15,845,279

94.230

47.566

1,479.277

111.033
384

1,732.490

1.722.941'

1,783.993
62,628

3.569.562

28.549.202

565.380

934.441

30.049.023

14.621.952

15.427.071

138,001

55,138

1.471.741

105.790
384

1.771.054

S 22.721.687 S 20.767.687

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current liabilities

Refundable advoncoo

Curreni portion of Economic Injury Disaster Loan
Curreni portion ol long term debt

Total curreni liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Long'term debl. less currenl portion shown above
Economic injury Disaster Loan, less current portion shown above

Total noncurreni liabilities

total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Withoul donor restrictions

With donor restrictions

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

208.035

229,110

353.788

158.972

1.510.522

3.585

159.974

2.633.084

1 1.243,212
146.415

n.389.627

14.022.711

8.564.624

134.352

8.698.976

240.586
170,074

244.003

148.854

720.956

142.174

1.675.646

10.91 1.627

150;000

11.061,627

12.737.273

7,815.065

215,349

8.030.414

S 22.721.687 S . 20.767.687

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

4



SOUTHWESTERN COMMUfjlTY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2022

WITH PRIOR YEAR SUMMARIZED COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

WitllOui Donor

Restrictions

With Donor

Restrictions

2022

Total

2021

Total

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Gdvernrneni cooitacls

Pibgrarn service foes
Rental income

Support
Sponsorshio

Interest income

Forgiveness of rtebi
Miscellaneous

In-kind contributions

Total revenues and other supoo't

NET ASSETS RELEASED FROM

RESTRICTIONS

Toiai revenues, other support, and

net assets released from resirlctions

EXPENSES

Program services

Home energy programs
Education and nutrition

Homeless programs
Housing services
Economic development services

-Other programs

Total program services

Supporting activities
Management and general

Total expenses

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS BEFORE

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON SALE OF PROPERTY

LOSS ON INVESTMENT IN LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED FROM

LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

NET ASSETS. END OF YEAR

24,553.574

2.991.407

1,817.636
610.247

28.520

1.099

90.609

156.954

89.366

30,339.4 12

139.925

30.479.337

7.051.760

2.826.493

13,349.415

3.070.446

658,791

683.000

27,639.905

2.031.266

29.671.171

808.166

(14.836)

(43.771)

749.559

7,815.065

$  8.564,624

58.928

58,928

•139.925)

(80.997)

(80.997)

(80.997)

215,349

S 24.553.574
2,991,407

1,817,636

669.175

28.520

1.099

90,609
156.954

89.366

30.398.340

30,398_.340

7.051.760

2.826.493

13.349.415

3.070.446

658.791
683.000

27,639.905

2.031.266

29.671.171

727,169

(14,836)

(43.771)

668.562

8.030.414

S  14.451.497
2.708.902

1.657.741

601,638

21.703

1.402

518.501

239.096
65.414

30.265.894

20.265.894

5.559.497

2.629.099

5.516.502

2.913.953

621.784
750.430

17,991.265

1,948.672

19.939.937

325.957

(60,897)

265,060

4.911,109

2.854.245

134.352 S 8.698,976 $ 8.030.414

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2022

Education Economic Managomont

Homo Energy and Homeless Housing Oeveloptiwni Oilier Total end 2622

Proorsms Nutrlilon Proorsms 5sM_ccs Services Programs ProflLam General Total

Paytol 5  551.119 S  I.653.7I3 S  801,1!9 5  672.177 S  310.C7S 5  •115.921 s  4,135.311 %  856.7-18 S  4.992,559

Pavrcl 10X00 15.132 12/.55> 49.849 5-.,b49 30.4'jl; 36.64b 340.122 68.3.'9 408.5:1

Emoioyoo oeneiils 127.:44 M37.10S 140,322 217.837 27.773 137.184 1,047.r.71 101,743 1,149.314

2t,M0 95.376 32,857 49,044 16.082 15,531) 243.710 66.594 310 .304

Adv«ti):^ri9 l,05o 12,573 428 7.537 8.S01 30,'105 5.120 35.525

Bank charges 3a 653 4.660 5.348 y./oi 15,049

Corrpiner coat -•*17 1G,7f.l 1.3.319 8.fX)1 14,81.5 - 52,199 127,747 179 946

CnntrAiuiiAl 828.975 I5.25f. 87,421 26.033 35.197 992.882 63,330 1,056 212

Oeprvoation . 26.<l3e 13<-,036 671.506 . 3.810 838.790 150.983 939.773

Duesji^ietratic^ 2.530 490 503 125 3.662 11./30 lb.4C'1

Dupftcsttng fi.SGfi • a.60i3 5,503 14.163

6.123 16.320 35.676 62.108 19.355 7,313 147,893 45.53: 193,238

ln;er6$( . '123 9.536 •18.822 278 50.059 113.506 '77,565

Meeting and ccnferonco 354 3.255 332 2.852 7,203 1.636 8-030

Misoeilanooue expense A70 2.-917 1/0 112,217 fi.285 5.102 177.414 .30,814 158.228

Mlsr/tSiineoiis tAies . 129.976 - - 129.375 150 130:12G
Egjiorrent purchases 11,730 3,'121 5.376 519 :'4.-:i; 720 24,766

Olfice exponso ■IS.'JOI 8.735 •.1'.754 10.409 3.513 90 S8.70Z 24.0/1 I12,//2
Postage I«h3 283 28 24 171 - 79C 33.927 34,723
Pro'esslonal fees 1.073 4,323 26.930 220 32.545 85,733 U8.»1
Si^fl duvetopnient und naming 1.366 2.387 S3S 3.095 121 1,635 10.255 .8,731 19.040
Suosoiptions 228 225 130 408

Tetepfone f..117 3,727 21,070 19.709 1.33:' 1.238 53.481 45.594 100.075
Travji 1.715 18,E5& 11.158 14,784 26.23J 249 76.795 , 1.428 77.-;23
V«ni:ie 9.133 2.096 21.565 79.215 13.051 I28.3M - 1.420 129,794
Rom 8.000 I6.30C' 2-1.505 48,£95 43.595
Space C9S16 21.537 205.132 456,428 386.31 / 10.742 25 1.680.461 164,152 1.753.523
Dircci client ossistanco 5.338.325 212.316 11,724.070 1-..007 37,545 2.953 t7.327,:43 17.32/.'34'J
In-kind exjtonscs 69.386 ; 89.365

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE
MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION 7,051,760 3.526,493 13,349,415 2.070,.116 658,791 683.000 27.639.905 2.321,266 29.671,171

Arnmhno nf fr^Anxgement and general eipensey 518,235 2C'7.720 981 053 225,648 48,415 50.194 2,031,266 (3.331,2561

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES S  7.5l:».a95 a 3.034.213 S 14.330 468 5 3.29fi.I)H4 S  71I/.206 5  73:1,lS4 S 29.671.171 £ i 29.6/1.1/1

Soc Notes 10 Consolidated Flnoncial Steterrtenis
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?OOTHWSSTERN CQMMWMrTY SEayL<U.S.JlC.JShtaB£WU:EPj;PaEANlS.S

CONSOLIOftTED STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

FOR THE YEAR ENOED MAY 31. 2D21

Ecliicatlnn Ecnnomic Managemant

Horn* Enargy ana Homalose Housing Oovolopmont Otbor Total and 2021

Proarnma Nutrition Pmeiram.x Snrvicea Services Prncirnms Prnaram nnrt CAnRrnI Totnl

°ayfOl S  436.387 $  1,518,514 %  491,034 S  725.103 %  350,543 5  439,136 S  4,011,067 S  752.118 S  4,763,183

PayroS ta<os 26,674 i:'6,£6S 37.005 43,514 30.246 33,024 2/6.033 120.407 396,530

Cmaloyoe bRoeiils I71,?70 144,2/fi 283,870 55.553 109.793 1,1=7,703 40,500 1,244,211

R9I remeni 32,604 86,776 24,671 51,308 20,760 14,238 229,357 06,965 296.322

AcJveftisirtg 3, IOC' 336 1,295 1,63R 6,419 133 6,552
&atiV ciia'ye j 10 - 1,130 4, 100 11 5.260 8.706 14,026

Conouto.f coot Z!i 28.113 12,051 7,766 16.171 64,322 183,132 2d/.4S4

i,0G7,40t 12,204 42,954 61,431 680 45,737 1,174.007 59,018 1,233,525
CyJO'^Sation 26,435 117,96? 6U3-U38 7,620 755.063 153,192 909,155
DitPA'fegislrRtion ?,^93 320 543 3,153 8,019 11.772

OupVrjti-.Kj 69 8,lf>3 8.220 4,588 12,817
Insutancs 5.539 15,1:35 .v.,433 57 Ofil 1.5,2911 s.nno 1.34,173 43,4flt) 177,616

5,955 5,993 48.121 1.600 61,740 112,918 175.e6»

Mcotiog and conference 840 154 •33 1,12/ 1,63/ 2,764

Discelanaoirs Ripense 3,803 1,242 82,239 9,546 1,359 97,249 2,675 09,924

MiocDlanoous laxoc 101,224 101.224 300 131,524

CowoTWii piirchnsfts .Tflr. 3.?X, 0,521 . 10,237 /.ftOfl 13,045
O'ti® expense I9,08<1 1^.479 6C',872 11.834 2,568 749 112.686 49,579 162,165

i*ostag« 300 363 126 3? 340 1,173 31.999 33,178

Piij'ess^ioiwt fews 1,050 5,330 38.627 42.377 81,024 124,011

Siolf!Jo'/ek>Dmcn; and :fotnin9 3,406 1,327 165 2.488 rjtc I,-85 0.186 17,341 26.526

nirfvxcriptims 98 96 2,7" 2.063

TBR^none 2,429 3.106 3C-,692 18.872 2,299 1.117 48.515 47.536 96.050

Travsl ft, 104 i2.x/r> 7,21? 9.515 50,330 51.497 5.676 57,172

Vetiida 8,147 4.170 1.743 41.329 35,041 5.852 00.187 3.912 103.C99

Rcri 24.559 - 21,112 45.771 46;/7i

Space costs 122,473 384,093 718.703 16,731 114 1.242.110 130,958 1,382,087

Direct cNco; aos'S'anco 3,/58,54J 170,702 4,126.100 12 971 24,300 3,782 8.135.512 8 135,512

In-onc expenses 65.414 6.5,414 65.414

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT ALLOCATION 5.559.497 2 629.-399 5,516,502 7,913053 621.784 750,420 17,991.265 1,945,672 19.939,337

Anuc<iti;^M cf tnanaguineril b'Kl ytrneiitl vxpynsas 032,181 264,783 597,584 315.010 07.347 81,?.=, 1 1.948,0'? '1,940.6721

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES S  6,151,65= 5  2.913,502 5 6.114,0C'6 S  3.229.569 $  689,131 !  ?3l.:ii s 19,939.937 5 S 19,939,937

Sab NoIra in Coi>«;nli<<Ried Finitiicial SlalemRnU'!
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Change in net assets
Adjuslmenls to reconcile change in nel assets to
net cash from operating activities:
Depreciation

Loss on sale of property
Loss on investment in limited partnerships
Forgiveness of debt

Decrease (increase) In assets:
Accounts receivable, nel

Prepaid expenses

Due from related parlies
Security deposits

(Decrease) increase in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes
Other current liabilities

Refundable advances

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of property
Purchase of propeny

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term debt
Repayment of long term debt
Proceeds from Economic injury Disaster Loan

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH. BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH TRANSFERRED

FROM LIMITED PARTNERSHIPS

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH, END OF YEAR

668.562

989.773

•M.836

43.771

(90.609)

38,041

(181.362)
7.572

(5,243)

(32,551)
59,036

109,783

10.118
789.667

2.421,394

3:840

(831.642)

(827.802)

(155.021)

155.021)

1.438.571

3.194.682

265,060

909.155

60,897

(518.501)

(580.504)

31.348

3.929

(2,242)

22.045

36.929

15.609

(300)
439,518

682,943

(432,400)

(432.400)

85,000

(272.062)
150,000

(37.062)

213.481

2.210.050

771.151

5  4.633,253 S 3.194,682

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANtES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year for interest -

CASH AND RESTRICTED CASH:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash escrow and reserve funds

Total cash and restricted cash

2022

$  176,903.

$  3,153.976
1.479.277

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Property financed by long lerm debt $

Transfer of assets from newly consolidated LPs:

Prepaid expenses
Land and buildings
Furniture and fixtures

Security deposits

Tola! transfer of assets from newly consolidated LPs

Transfer of liabililles from newly consolidated LPs'
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Long lerm debt

Total transfer of liabilities from newly consoiidnied LPs

Total partners' capital from newly consotldaied LPs

Partners' capital previously recorded as invesimenf in related parlies

rota! transfer of partners' capital from newly consolidated LPs

2021

175,005

$  1,722.94)
1.471.741

$  4.633.253 S 3.194.682

595.015 S 787.599

$  36.807

3.382.003

624.491

33.781

S  4.077.082

S  57,865
46.122

1,890,298

S  1.994,285

$  2.853:948

^

S  2,854,245

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 1 ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation
formed as an umbrella corporation that offers an array of services to the elderly,
disabled, and low-income households In the Cheshire and Sullivan counties of
New Hampshire. Various programs provide assistance in the areas of education,
child development, employment, energy and its conservation, housing, and
homelessness prevention. Services are provided through Southwestern
Community Services. Inc.. and its related corporations, SCS Management
Corporation, SCS Housing, Inc., .SCS Development Corporation. SCS Housing
Development, Inc., and various limited partnerships, as described below, The
Organization is committed to providing respectful support services and assisting
individuals and families in achieving self-sufficiency by helping them overcome the
causes of poverty. The primary source of revenues is derived from governmental
contracts.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Southwestern
Commuflity Services, Inc. and the following entities (collectively the Organization)
as Southwestern Community Services, Inc. has both an economic interest and
control of the entities through a majority voting interest in their governing board.
All significant intercompany iterins and transactions have been eliminated from the
basic consolidated financial statements.

SCS Management Corporation
SCS Housing, Inc.
SCS Development Corporation
SCS Housing Development, Inc.
Drewsville Carriage House Associates, Limited Partnership (Drewsville)
Troy Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Troy Senior)
Keene East Side Senior Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene
East Side)
Winchester Senior Housing Associates. Limited Partnership (Winchester)
Swanzey Township Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Swanzey)
Snow Brook Meadow Village Housing Associates. Limited Partnership
(Snow Brook)
Keene Highland Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Keene Highland)
Warwick Meadow Housing Associates, Limited Partnership (Wanvick)

Basts of Accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared
utilizing the accrual basis of accounting in accordance With generally accepted
accounting principles.

10



SOUTHWESTERN COMIVIUNltY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2022 AND 2021

Basis of Priesentation

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (US GAAP),
which .require the Organization to report information regarding .its financial
position -and activities according to the following net asset classifications. The
classes of net assets are determined by the presence or absence of donor-
imposed restrictions.

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to
donor-imposed restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in
performing the primary objectives of the Organization. These net assets may
be used at the discretion of the Organization's Board of Directors.

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed
by donors and grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature;
those restrictions will be met by actions of the Organization or by passage of
time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the donor has
stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

As of May i31..2022 and 2021, the Organization had net assets without donor
restrictions and with donor restrictions.

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative
information in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include
sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction
with the Organization's financial statements for the year ended May 31, 2021 from
which the summarized information was derived.

Refundable Advances

The Organization records grant and contract revenue as refundable advances until
it is expended for the purpose of the grant or contract, at which time it is recognized
as revenue.

In-Kind Support

The Organization records various types of in-kind support including professional
services and materials. Contributed professional services are recognized if the
service received creates or enhances-long-lived assets or requires specialized skill,
are provided by individuals possessing those skills, and would typically need to be
purchased if not provided by donation. Contributions of tangible assets are
recognized at fair value when received.

11



SOU-THWg^tERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND R^ATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2022 AND 2021

Estimates . ...

The presentation of financial statements , in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires rrianagement to rnake estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of,assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Organization considers ail liquid
investments purchased with original maturities of three months or less to be cash
equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from
balances outstanding at year end. Balances that are still outstanding after
management has used reasonable collection efforts are written off through a
charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable. The
allowance for uncollectible accounts was estimated to be zero at May 31, 2022.
The allowance for uncollectible accounts was approximately $3,600 for the year
ended May 31, 2021. The Organization has no policy for charging interest on
overdue accounts.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Organization maintains its cash accounts in several financial institutions,
which at times may exceed federally insured limits. The Organization has not
experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not exposed to any
significant risk with respect to these accounts.

Current Vulnerability Due to Certain Concentrations

The Organization is operated in a heavily regulated environment. The operations
of the Organization are subject to the administrative directives, rules and
regulations of federal, state and local regulatory agencies. Such administrative
directives, rules and regulations are subject to change by an act of Congress or
Legislature. Such changes may occur with little notice or inadequate funding to
pay for the related cost, including the additional administrative burden, to comply
with a change. For the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021, approximately 80%
and 71%, respectively, of the Organization's total revenue was received from
government agencies. The future nature of the Organization is dependent upon
continued support from the government.
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SQIJtHWEST^N community services, inc. AND'REbf^TED companies

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Property and Depreciation

Purchased properly and equipment are stated at cost at the date of acquisition
or at fair value at the date of receipt in the case of donated property.. The
Organization generally capitalizes and depreciates all assets with a cost greater
than $5,000 and an expected life, greater than one year. Depreciation is provided
for using the straight-line method in amounts designed to amortize the cost of
the assets over their estimated useful lives as follows;

Buildings and improvements 10-40 Years
Vehicles and equipment 5 - 10 Years
Furniture and fixtures 7 Years

The use of certain assets is specified under the terms of grants received from
agencies of the federal government. These grants also place liens on certain
assets and impose restrictions on the use of funds received from the disposition
of the property: Depreciation expense for the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021
totaled $'989,773 and $909,155, respectively.

Advertising

The Organization expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Income Taxes

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and SOS Management Corporation are
exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(,3) of the Internal
Revenue-Code and are not private foundations. As such, they are exempt from
incorne tax on their exempt function income.

SCS Housing, Inc., SCS Development Corporation and SCS Housing Development,
Inc. are taxed as corporations. SCS Housing Inc. has federal net operating loss
carryforwards available for the May 31, 2022 and 2021 tax returns totaling
$1,252,122 and $1,230,191. respectively. These loss carryforwards may be offset
against future taxable income and. if not used, will begin to expire in 2027. SCS
Development Corporation has federal net operating loss carryforwards totaling $513
and S542 at May 31, 2022 and -2021, respectively. These loss carryforwards may be
offset against future taxable income and, if not used. wiU 'begin to expire in 2022.
SCS Housirtg Development, Inc. has federal net operating loss carryforwards
totaling $55,129 and $5,9.861 at May 31. 2022 and 2021, respectively. These loss
carryforwards may be offset against future taxable income and, if not used, will begin
to expire In'2035.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVfeES. INC: AND RELATED COMPANIES- - —

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

The tax effects of the carryforwards as related, to deferred tax assets is as
follows as of May 31, 2022 and 2021;

2022 2021

Tax benefit from loss carryforwards $274,630 , $271,025
Valuation allowance (274.630) (271.025)

Deferred tax asset $ r $

Drewsville, Troy Senior. Winchester. Keene East Side, Swanzey, S.now Brook,
Keene Highland, and Warwick are taxed as partnerships. Federal income taxes are
not payable by. or provided for these entities. Earriings and losses are included in
the partners' federal income tax returns based on their share .of partnership
eamings. Partnerships are required to file income tax returns with the^ State of New
Hampshire and pay an income tax at the state's statutory rate.

Accounting Standard Codification No. 740, "Accounting for Income Taxes,"
established the minimum threshold for recognizing, and a systern for rrieasuring,
the benefits of tax return positions in financial statements". Management has
analyzed the Organization's tax position taken on its inc'ome tax returns for all
open years and has concluded that no additional provision for income taxes is
necessary in the Organization's financial statements.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC Topic No. 820-10, Financial Instruments, provides a definition of fair
value which focuses oh an exit price rather than an entry price,-establishes a
framework in generally accepted accounting principles for measuring fair value
which emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-
specific measurement, and requires expanded disclosures about fair value
measurements. In accordance with ASC, 820-10, the Organization may use
valuation "techniques consistent with market, income and cost approaches to
measure fair value. As a basis for considering market participant assumptions in
fair value measurements. Topic 820-10 establishes a fair value hierarchy, which
prioritizes the inputs used in measuring fair values. The hierarchy gives the
Kighest pribfity to Level 1 measurements and the lowest pfiorify to Level 3
measurements. The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC Topic
820-10 are described as follows;

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices available in
active markets for identical investments as of the reporting date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are other than quoted market
prices in active rnarkets, which are either directly or indirectly obserVable as
of the" reporting'date, and fair value" .can-be determined through the .use of
models or other valuation methodologies.
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES.-JNC. AND RELATED COIVIPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Lev^e/3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservabte inputs in -
situations where there is little or no market activity for the asset or liability and
the reporting entity makes estimates and assumptions related to the pricing of
the asset or liability including assumptions regarding risk.

The carrying amount, of cash, accounts receivables, prepaid expenses, accounts
payable, accrued expenses, and refundable advances approximates fair value
because of the short maturity of those instruments.

Support and Revenue Recognition

Contracts with Customers

Program fees are reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which
the Organization expects to be entitled for providing chiidcare services to its
clients.

Generally, the Organization bills customers and third-party payors several days
after the services are performed. Revenue is recognized as performance
obligations are satisfied. Performance obligations are determined based on the
nature'of the services provided by the Organization, The Organization measures
the performance otjiigations of its chiidcare services to the point when it is no
longer required to provide services to the client, which is generally weekly for
chiidcare services. These services are considered to be a single performance
obligation.

Revenue for performance obligations satisfied at a poipt in tinne is recognized
when services are provided, and the Organization does not believe.it is required to
provide additional services to the client.

Based on the nature of services provided by the Organization and due to the fact
that, all of the Organization's performance obligations related to contracts with a
duration of less than one year, the Organization has elected to apply the optional
exemption provided in PASS ASC 606-10-50-14(a) and, therefore is not required
to -disclose the aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to
performance obligations that are unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied at the end of
the reporting period.

The transaction price for chiidcare services Is based oh standard charges for
services provided io clients. Under the terms of the State of New Harhpshire
Department of Health and Human Services chiidcare subsidy programs,
reimbursement for chiidcare services provided may differ from established rates. It
Is the Organization's policy to set its rates to be consistent with current
reimbursement rates. Therefore, amounts due do not include significant variable
consideration subject to retroactive revenue adjustm^ents -due to settlement of
reviews and audits.
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INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Private Grant Revenue and Contributions „ .

Private grant contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other
assets, an unconditional promise to give, or riotification of a beneficial interest is
re.ceived. Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the conditions on
which they depend have been substantially met. Support that is restricted by the
donor is reported as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions, if the
restriction expires in the reporting period in which the support is recognized. All
other donor-restricted support is reported as an increase in net assets with
donor restrictions, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction
expires, (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is
accomplished), net assets with donor restrictions are reclassjfied to net assets
without donor restrictions and reported in the combined statements of activities
as net assets released from restrictions.

Grants and Support

Grant revenue is derived from various federal grant agreements and various
state and private entity passthrough grant agreements and contracts to provide
funding support of the Organization's programs and services provided by the
Organization including childcare, child development, social, health, nutrition,
employment, language, energy, and special needs services to families enrolled
in .the Organization's programs. The Organization has evaluated its grant
agreements against applicable accounting standard guidance and determined
that the grant agreements are contributions (nonreciprocal transaction)
conditioned upon certain performance requirements and/or incurrence of
allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue
when the Organization has incurred expenses in compliance with specific
provisions of the grant agreements.

Rental Revenue

The Organization derives revenues from the rental of apartment units.
Revenues are recognized as income, monthly, when rents become due and
control of the apartment units is transferred to the lessees. The individual
leases are for a term of one year and are caricelable by the tenants. Control of
the leased units is transferred to the lessee in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Partnership expects to be entitled to in exchange for the
leased units. The cost incurred to obtain a lease will be expensed as incurred.
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SOUTHWESTERN CQMfeNITY SERVICES.iNC. AND RELATEaCQMRA^MlES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31, 2022 AND 2021

Functional AlloGation of Expenses .

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Natural expenses are defined by their nature,
such as salaries, rent, supplies, etc. Functional expenses are classified by the
type of activity for which expenses are incurred, such as management and
general and direct program costs. Expenses are allocated by function using a
reasonable and consistent approach that is primarily based on function and use.
The costs of providing certain program and supporting services have been
directly charged.

The Organization submits an indirect cost rate proposal for the paid leave, fringe
benefits and other indirect costsMo the U.S. Department of Health and Human
services. The indirect cost rate is 12% effective from June 1, 2021 through May
31. 2022.

NOTE 2 BANK LINE OF CREDIT

The Organization'Has a $250,000 revolving line of credit agreement with a bank.
Interest is due monthly and is stated at the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate or at a
floor rale of 4%? The lihe is secured by all the Organization's assets. As of May
31, 2022 and 2021, the interest rate was 4%. There was no outstanding balance
at May 31. 2022 and 2021.

NOTE 3 LONG TERM DEBT

The long term debi consisted of the following at May 31:

1% mortgage payable to New Hampshire Housing
in monthly installments for principal and interest of
$891 through August 2032. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (NHH. 96 Main
Street). $

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to
Community Development Finance Authority, in
quarterly principal payments based on an operating
income formula applied to affordable housing
portion of the specified real estate. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CDFA,
96 Main Street).

2022 2021

117.535 $ 127,000

25.589 27,589
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■.■SOAJJJdWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. IMCL AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

.  . 2022 2021
Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment is deferred for 30
years, through September 203-1, or until project is
sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHH. 17 Pearl). . 242,708 242,708

Non-interest bearing mortgage payable to New
Hampshire Housing. Payment, is deferred for 30
years, through July 2032, unless there is surplus
cash from which to make a payment, or until project
is sold or refinanced. The note is secured by real
estate of the Organization (NHH, 41-43 Central). 376,066 376,066

4.25% mortgage payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $1,875
through December 2016, with a balloon payment
that was due January 2017. The note was
amended during the year ended May 31, 2019, and
is now due' December 2026. Under the amendment,
interest rate is 4.94% and monthly installments for
principal and interest are $1,957 The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization
(People's United Bank, Milestones). 94,456 112.702

4.375% note payable to Rural Housing Service in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$11.050 through May 2049. The note is secured by
real estate of the Organization (TD Bank, Keene
Office). 2.095,301 2.134.970

Non-interest bearing note payable to Cheshire
County in New Hampshire. Payment is not
necessary unless Organization defaults on contract.
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG, Keene Office). 460,000 460,000
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SQtJ-TH^^TERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.-AND^FtorATED COIVIPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FORTHE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Note payable to a bank in monthly installments for
principal and interest of $2;463 including interest
through May 2039. Interest is adjusted every five
years based on remaining principal balance and
"Classic Advantage Rate" provided by Federal
Home Loan Bank of Boston which resulted in an

interest rate of 4.67% at May 31, 2022 and 2021.
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (TO Bank, Keene Office/Community
Way). 362.931 376.617

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each year
providing the property is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (HUD,
Ashuelot). 50.000 75.000

Non-interest bearing note payable to the United
States Department of Housing and Urban
Development. No payment is due and beginning in
January 2015 10% of the note is forgiven each year
providing the property, is used for low income
housing through January 2025. The note is secured
by real estate of the Organization (HUD, 112
Charlestown Road), 30,000 45,000

Non-interest bearing note payable to New
Hampshire Housing in annual payments in the
amount of 50% of annual surplus cash through July
2042 at which time the remaining balance is due.
The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (NHH, Second Chance). 794,189 794,189

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in
New Hampshire. No payment is due and 5% of the
balance is forgiven each year through 2032 when
the remaining balance becomes due. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (CpBG,
Second Chance). 296.217 311.808
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SOUTHWESTERNCQIVIMUNITY SLERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO-CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Non-interest bearing note payable to a county in -.
New Hampshire, relating to an agreement between
the City of Keene and SOS for the purpose of
renovating Keehe shelters. In total, SOS will receive
$472,000 from CDBG. The agreement was
amended during the year ended May 31. 2022 to
increase the total loan to $652,091. SOS y/ill
receive the funds as progress is made. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization and will
be fully forgiven providing the facility serves low-
and moderate-income individuals for 20 years
(Keene Shelters). 629,280 127,215

5.54% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$543 through August 2022. The note is secured, by
a vehicle (Ally, Econoline Van). 1,581 7,815

2.99% note payable to a bank in monthly
installments for principal and interest of $820
through May 2031. The note, is secured by real
estate of the Organization (Savings Bank of
Walpole. 45 Central Street). 76,974 84,395

Non-interest bearing note payable to the City of
Keene, New Hampshire. The note expires in June
2022 and payment is not necessary unless the
Organization defaults on contract. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (City of
Keene, 139 Roxbury Street). 77,100 77,100

Non-interest bearing note payable to the City of
Keene, New Hampshirej with an original balance of
$240,000 reduced to $204,000 when -the
Organization acquired the note from Keene
Housing in July 2020. No payment is due and 5%
of the balance is forgiven each year through June
2037. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (City of Keene, 139 Roxbury Street). 192,000 204,000

3.575% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$650 through September 2026. The note is secured
by a vehicle (Leaf, Dodge Ram). 30,888
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2Q22 AND 2021

2022 2021

3.75% note payable to a finance company in ■.
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$530 through November 2026. The note is secured
by a vehicle (Leaf. Promaster Van). 25,960

4.373% note payable to a finance company in
monthly installments for principal and interest of
$534 through December 2026. The note is secured
by a vehicle (Leaf. Promaster Van). 26.576

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
a county in New Hampshire. Payments are deferred
until the note matures in June 2029. The note is

secured by real estate of the Organization (CDBG). 640.000 640.000

Troy Senior - Non-interest bearing note payable to
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority to fund
energy efficient improvements through the
Authority's Greener Homes Program. Payment is-
deferred for 30 years, through August 2042. The
note is secured by real estate of the Organization
(NHH). 140,210 140.210

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to a county in New Hampshire. Payments
are deferred until the note matures in December
2028. The note is secured by real estate of the
Organization (CDBG). 900,000 900,000

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Community
Development Finance Authority (CDFA) to fund
energy upgrades and capital improvements.
Beginning in 2016, 10% of the note is forgiven each
year based on the rolling balance. The mortgage
may be released after ten years in Jariuary' 2026.
The note is secured by real estate of. the
Organization (CDFA). 116,841 139,860
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SQUTHWESTERM 6-QMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATE-&.CQJVtPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Keene East Side - Non-interest bearing note
payable to New Hampshire Housing to fund energy
efficient improvements through the Authority's
Greener Homes Program. Payment is deferred for
30 years, through August 2042. The note is
secured by real estate of the Organization (NHH). 228,934 228.934

Swanzey - Non-recourse, 4.90% simple interest
mortgage note payable to the New Hampshire
Housing (HOME), due September, 2033. principal
and interest payable at the sole discretion of the
lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 286,530 287,710

Swanzey - Non-recourse mortgage note payable to
New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due September
2043, payable in rhonthly installments of $1,698,
including interest at 2.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and' buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 40 year
term of the mortgage. 341,364 353,561

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing, due July
2057, payable in monthly installments of $2,002
including interest at 4.35% secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage. 431,859 436,974

Snow Brook - Non-recourse, zero interest mortgage
note payable to New Hampshire Housing (AHF),
due June 2034, principal and interest payable at
the sole discretion of the lender from the excess

cash of the borrower determined by formula,
secured by the Partnership's land' and buildings,
subject to low income housing use restrictions for
the 30 year term of the mortgage. 237,173 237,173
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SOUTHWESTERN COMiyiUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COIVIP^NIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

2022 2021

Winchester - Non-recourse mortgage note payable

to New Hampshire Housing (AHF). due May.,2032.
payable in monthly installments of $370, including. .
interest at 2.00%, secured by the Partnership's land ■

and buildings, subject to low income housing use
restrictions for the 30 year term of the mortgage
note(NHH). 39,850 43.450

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing

mortgage note payable to New Hampshire Housing
(FAF), due May 2032, payable at the sole discretion
of the lender from the excess cash of the borrower

determined by formula, secured by the
Partnerships land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30-year
term of the mortgage note (NHH). 77.452 79,609

Winchester - Non-recourse, zero interest bearing,

direct subsidy AHP loan secured' by the
Partnership's land and tpuildings, subject to low-
income housing restrictions under the terms of the
AHP agreement. In the event of a default under the
aforementioned agreement, the loan is due upon
demand with interest accrued at a rate of 11.67%

for the period the funds were outstanding (Federal
Home Loan Bank). 150,000 150.000

Keene Highland - Non-recourse mortgage note
payable to New Hampshire Housing (AHF), due
August 2035, payable in monthly installments of
$3,122, including interest at 2.90%, secured by the
Partnership's land and buildings, subject to low
income housing use restrictions for the 30 year
term of the mortgage note (NHH). 409.579 434,765

Keene Highland - 30 year, zero interest, non
recourse deferred rhortgage note payable to the
City of Keene, New. Hampshire due June 2035,
payment of principal is deferred unti[ the due date,
secured by land and buildings (City of Keene). 915.000 915.000
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES.4NG^D RELATED COIVIPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Warwick - 30 year, zero interest, non-recourse
deferred mortgage note payable to the Town of
Winchester. New Hampshire due August 2036,
payment of principal is deferred until the due date,
secured by land and buildings (Town of
Winchester).

Total long-term debt before unamortized deferred
financing costs

Unamortized deferred financing costs

Less current portion due within one year

£11.243.212

2022 2021

500.000 500.000

11.420.143 11,071,420

(16.957) (17.619)

11.403,186 11.053,801

159.974 142.174

the schedule of maturities of long term debt at May 31, 2022 is as follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

Thereafter

$

Amount

159,974

164,282

170.410

176.786

159,624

10.589.067

Total £1-1.420.143

NOTE 4 ECONOMIC INJURY DISASTER LOAN

During June 2020, the Organization received an Economic Injury Disaster Loan
(EIDL). from the Small Business Administration with .proceeds, in the amount of
$150,000. The EIDl, is payable over 30 years at an interest rate of 2.75% with a
deferral of payments-for 30 months from the date of the note. Installments, including
principal and interest, of $641 monthly begin in December 2022. The balance of
principal arid interest will be payable in December 2052. The loan is secured by
the Small Business Administration.

24



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

The scheduled maturities of the EIDL as of May 31. 2022 were as follows:

Year Ending
May 31

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

Thereafter

Amount

3,585

3,685

3,788

3,893

4,001

131.048

NOTE 5 FORGIVENESS OF DEBT

During the years ended May 31. 2022 and 2021, the Organization realized
forgiveness of debt income in connection with notes payable to Community
Development Block Grant, HUD and Community Development Finance
Authority. Forgiveness of debt income totaled $90,609 and $79,431 for the
years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

The Organization recognized forgiveness of debt of $439,070 related to the
Paycheck Protection Program during the year ended May 31, 2021. See
additional detail at Note 16.

NOTE 6 OPERATING LEASES

The Organization leases facilities, equipment and vehicles under non-cancelable
lease agreements at various financial institutions. Lease periods range from
month to month to 2027. Monthly lease payments range from $900 to $3,625.
Lease expense for the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021 totaled $156,230
and $148,143, respectively.

Future minimum payments as of May 31, 2022 on the above leases are as
follows:

Year Ending
■May. 31

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

Amount
$  52.915

49.500
49,481
49,959
41,576

Total
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 7 ACCRUED COMPENSATED BALANCES

At May 31, 2022 and 2021, the Organization accrued a liability for future annual
leave time that its employees had earned and vested in the amount of $143,703
and $144,916. respectively.

NOTE 8 CONTINGENCIES

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. is the 100% owner of SOS Housing. Inc.
and SOS Housing Development, Inc. SOS Housing. Inc. and SOS Housing
Development. Inc. are the general partners of eight limited partnerships formed
to develop low-income housing projects through the use of Low Income Housing
Tax Credits. Southwestern Community Services. Inc., SCS Housing, Inc. and
SCS Housing Development, Inc. have guaranteed repayment of liabilities of
various partnerships totaling approximately $11,760,000 and $11,929,000 at
May 31. 2022 and 2021. respectively.

Partnership real estate with a cost basis of approximately $27,348,000 at May
31, 2022 and 2021 provides collateral on these loans.

The Organization receives funds under various state grants and from -Federal
sources. Under the terms of these agreements, the Organization is required to
use the funds within a certain period and for purposes specified by the governing
laws and regulations. If costs were found not to have been incurred in
compliance with the jaws and regulations, the Organization might be required to
repay the funds.

No provisions have been made for this contingency because specific amounts, if
any. have not been determined or assessed by government audits as of May 31.
2022 and 2021.

NOTE 9 RELATED PARtV TRANSACTIONS
During the years ended May 31. 2022 and 2021, SCS Housing, Inc. managed
nine and eleven limited partnerships, respectively. Management fees charged by
SCS Housing. Inc. totaled $237,822 and $228,239, for the years ended May 31.
2022 and 2021, respectively. Additionally, SCS Housing, Inc. has advanced the
limited partnerships funds for cash flow purposes over several years.

The Organization has also advanced funds to a related entity for Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) sponsorship purposes.

The total amounts due and expected to be collected from the limited partnerships
and related entities totaled $47,566 and $55,138 at May 31, 2022 and 2021.
respectively.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 10 EQUITY INVESTMENT

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies use the equity
method to account-for their financial interests In the following companies:

2022 2021

Cityside Housing Associates, LP $ (9,516) $ (9,509)
Marlborough Homes. LP (57) (43)
Payson Village Senior Housing Associates, LP (12,539) (12,524)

Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates. LP (2,436) (2'.247)
Woodcrest Drive Housing Associates, LP 137,205 180,727
Westmill Senior Housing. LP 34 49
Alstead Senior Housing Associates, LP (18.461) (18.452)

S  94.230 £ 138.001

SOS Housing Development, Inc. is a 0.01% partner of Cityside Housing
Associates. LP, Marlborough Homes, LP. Payson Village Senior Housing
Associates, LP, Warwick Meadows Housing Associates, LP, Woodcrest Drive
Housing Associates, LP, and Aistead Senior Housing Associates. LP. a 0.10%
partner of Railroad Square Senior Housing Associates. LP. and a 1% partner of
Westmill Senior Housing. LP during the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021.

SCS Housing, the. is a 0.01% partner of Winchester Senior Housing Associates,
LP, Swanzey Township Housing Associates, LP, Snow Brook Meadow Village
Housing Associates, LP, and Keene Highland Housing Associates, LP during the
years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021.

The remaining 99.99% ownership interest in Keene Highland Housing
Associates, LP and Warwick Meadow Housing Associates, LP were acquired by
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. during the year ending May 31, 2021
(see Note 14), and therefore the limited partnerships are included in the
consolidated financial statements for the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

Summapized financial information for entities accounted for,under the equity
method,-as of May 31. 2022 and'2021, consists of the following;

2022 2021

Total assets S  56.169

Total liabilities

Capital/Member's equity

Income

Expenses

Net loss

14,923

36.281

S  51.204

S  3.306

4.713

15.200

37.969

£  53.169

$  -3,267

4.719

£  (1.4521

NOTE 11 RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization maintains a tax sheltered annuity plan under the provisions of
Section 403(b) of the internal Revenue Code. All employees .who have had at
least 30 days of service to the Organization are eligible to contribute to the plan.
The Organization begins matching contributions after the employee has reached
one year of service. Employer contributions are at the Organization's discretion
and totaled -$310,304 and $296,322 for the years ended May 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

NOTE 12 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSETS

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes:

NNECAC - Annual Conference Fund

GAPSAA/arm Fund

Transport
HS Parents Association

Total net assets with donor restrictions

$•

2022

108:508

20,000

5.844

2021

$  16,646
101,736
90,000
6.967

£  134.352 £ 215.349
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31.2022 AND 2021

NOTE 13 BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

The board designates a pdrtibh of the unrestricted net assets for WM Marcello
GAPS funds. There was $12,792 and $12,790 designated by the board at May
31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

NOTE 14 TRANSFER OF PARTNERSHIP INTERESTS

During the year ended May 31, 2021, Southwestern Community Services, inc.
acquired a partnership interest in two low-income housing limited partnerships:
Keene Highland and Warwick. The amount paid for the partnership interest in
Keene Highland and Warwick was $1 each, and at the time of acquisition,
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. became the general partner.

The following is a summary of the assets and liabilities of the partnerships at the
date of acquisition:

Keene

Highland Warwick

Date of Transfer 07/01/2020 01/01/2021

Cash

Security deposits
Cash reserves

Property, net
Other assets

$  156,907
21,321

391.456

2,769.245

25.946

$  68,061

12,460

154,727

1.237,249

10.861

Total assets *3.364.875
j

1.483.358

Notes payable
Other liabilities

1.372,220

85.048

518.078

18.939

Total liabilities 1.457.268 537.017

Partners' capital 1.907,607 946.341

Partners' capital previously recorded
as an investment in related parties 269 28

Partners' capital transferred $ 1.907.87_6 $  946.369
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

!  FOR THE YEARS ENDED MAY 31. 2022 AND 2021

NOTE 15 . LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The following represents Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related
companies'financial assets as of May 31. 2022 and 2021:

Financial assets at year end:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts.receivable

Due from related party

Cash escrow and reserve funds

Total financial assets

Less amounts not available to be used

within, one year:

Due from related party
Reserve funds

Total amounts not available within one year

Financial assets available to meet general
expenditures over the next twelve months

2022

3.153.976

1,745,952
47.566

1.479.277

6.426.771

2021

1,722,941

1,783,993

55,138
1.471,741

5,033,813

(47,566)
(1,479.277)

(1.526.843)

(55,138)
(1.471.741)

(1,526.879)

S 3.506.934

The Organization has a goal to maintain unrestricted cash on hand to meet 30
days of normal operating expenditures, which are, on average, approximately
$2,350,000 and $1,559,000 at May 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The
Organization has a $250,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs.

NOTE 16 PAYCHECK PROTECTION PROGRAM

In April 2020, the Organization received loan proceeds in the amount of $439,070
under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP). The PPP, is established as part of
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and Economic Security Act (CARES Act). If the
Organization did not meet the loan criteria, the unforgiven portion of the PPP loan is
payable over five years at an interest rate of 1%, with a deferral of payments for the
first ten months. The Organization has used the proceeds for purposes consistent
with the PPP and the PPP loan has been forgiven in full. Therefore, forgiveness of
the loan totaling $439,070 was recognized on the Consolidated Statement of
Activities for the year ended May 31, 2021.
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i  NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTE 17 - - RECLASSIFICATION

'  Certain amounts and accounts from the prior year's financial statements were
j  reclassified to enhance comparability with the current year's financial-statements.

NOTE 18 OTHER EVENTS

The impact of the novel coronavirus {COVID-19) and measures to prevent its
spread are affecting the Organization's operations. The significance of the impact of
these disruptions, including the extent of their adverse impact on the Organization's
financial operational results, will be dictated by the length of time that such
disruptions continue and, in turn, will depend on the currently unknowable duration
of the COVID-19 pandemic and the impact of governmental regulations that might
be imposed in response to the pandemic. The Organization's business could also
be impacted should the disruptions from COVID-19 lead to cffahges in consumer

r  behavior. COVID-19 also makes it more challenging for management to estimate
future performance of the businesses, particularly over the near to medium term.

NOTE 19: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

'  Subsequent everils are events or transactions that occur after the statement of
financial position date, but before financial statements are available to be issued.
Recognized subsequent events are events or transactions that provide additional
evidence about conditions that existed at the statement of financial position date,
including the estimates inherent in the process of preparing financial statements.
Ndn'recognized subsequent events are events that provide evidence about
conditions that did not exist at the statement of financial position date, but arose

'  after that date. Management has evaluated subsequent events through February
9. 2023, the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
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CONSOUOATEO SCHEDULE OF FUHCTIO^^AL REVENUES AND EXPENSES

FOR FHE YEAR ENDED MAY 31 2022
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co*i

CutiUbctusl

OacK^'aitor
CXics-ngisifs&on
Oiiptiiftlinn

r/«ati!)9 ar.d -xntsrencp
Uisc^r.coiG exccxo
Ukscn^r.epu! taxna
Ecuipmeii ju'chases
OfSicu ixooiisa

Pcswgo
PrSsscionsi 'ccs

Stai! devsl3(x^eni and irsimno
SLbscnotions
TaJapnorn
TraveJ

Vshic'e

Rent

Scac« ccsis
Oirti::! 'J'ei't

ir-kind axconses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES BEFORE

MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL ALLOCATION

Allocsnon of managomeni and general e<Danses

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

I  5.51.449 S  1.553.7VJ S  601.459 $  672.177 S  340,079 5  418,924 S  4.135.811 S  856.748 :  4.y«J2.850

45.132 »2'.r07 49B49 51,549 30,490 35,rar. 34:.127 60.379 406,501

137,544 387,103 140.332 217,637 27,775 137,154 1.C47.571 101,743 1.149,314

31.440 95.676 32,857 43.044 16.083 18,550 242.710 66.594 310.304

1.066 12.5/3 428 7,6-J/ 8.801 - 30.406 6,120 35,625

35 653 4.850 - 5-348 9.701 15,048

307 15,754 13,319 S,001 14.818 52.199 127.747 179 940

825.975 15.253 87,421 26.033 35.197 392.883 63.330 1.056,212

26,439 134,036 674.506 3.810 53S.700 130.083 939.773

2.539 . 490 508 125 a.6S2 11./39 16.401

a.rw.D . 5.000 5,50.1 14.1B3

8.123 16.520 35 678 82,108 19.859 7.313 147.699 45.537 193,230

123 9 536 4S.822 278 59.059 118.505 177,569

354 3.256 832 2,832 7,303 1.53S 8.039

6/0 2.91/ 120 ir2.217 6,388 5.132 127.414 30.514 -•58.228

1?ei,97r. 129.976 15.1 130.126

14.730 3.421 5.378 519 24.046 720 24.700

•13.291 3.736 22.754 tC.409 3.513 30 88,702 3-1.071 112.773

-.90 382 28 24 171 706 33.927 34.723

1.075 4.323 11:.930 220 32.648 85./63 118.301

l.ftgfi 7.RR7 fCS .3.095 121 l.BfiS 10.259 2.7B1 ,19.040

. 778 . 228 1/10 "408

5.147 3,727 21,670 19.709 1.930 -.298 63.491 4C.SSU 100.07.5

4.715 •.8.S5G 11,150 '4.784 26.330 249 70,095 1.428 77..5?3

9,423 2,099 24.586 79.218 13.061 128.374 1,420 129.794

8.000 •6.200 - 24.595 48.895 48.695

21.827 205.13S •t!6.-»38 586.317 19.742 25 1.680.461 164.162 1.753.623

5.338.825 212.646 11,724.670 11.007 37.240 2,953 17.327.043 17,327.043

89.366 88.366 69.366

7,051.750 2,326.493 13,:349,415 3.070.446 668.791 683 00-0 27,639.905 2.031.266 29.67),17V

518.226 _^7720 •>;i,C53 225,848 48.41; iOjW 2,031.286 ;2.031.206l

S  7,509,950 S 3,034.213 S 14,>30,*38 S  2,290,094 S  707.200 $  733,104 S 29.071.171 $ $ 29,R71.171

S«a Indeperident Audllora' Raport
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S.QUIHVyESTERN CQMMUN[TY_SERVICES. INC. AND RELATED COMPANIES

FOR THE YEftR ENDED MAY 31 2021

REVENUES ANO OTHER SUPPORT

GwAj'nititftu cocit'aiits
Praprsm ssrv.co fee

Rental income

Si.'Ppo<l
Sconssrpncp ,
tnterw.) ivyjme

Fcrgtvonss? ol oabi
lAsr.el'Aneo.iS

In-Kind coniributiors

Total 'sveoues an; otnor sunoo"

EXPENSES

P<«y»oti
Pa^Toti taxes

t-ncio-yea beneits
Reiireman!

AJve<tlwiiy
8nnK ̂ narQos
Cttnpffior ;os

C;n:r«l(i2l
b«p'tKUii>cy> ^
0iics/tp(^rjrsiian
Uuoicaimp
■murs%e
■nureal

klcctina and confo'cncc
Khucallaneoiis expend
Mscellaneous tixea
Equip.m^nt ourcnasss
Ofxo cxacnsc
Posiago
PriXesslinsl
S:all devoioprrn'i ana trsimno
S'jbscnoiiona
Teieohone

vaMcis

Kan:
Soaofi cssts
Dibci '■J imi
In-kind eicensos

TOTAL FUNC7IUNAL EXPENSES BEFORE
GENERAL AND MANAGEMENT ALLOCATION

A'kiCiliun ul tnaniiutfi'unt ^nd general exoaiuuk

TOTAL FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

AND EXPENSES

Education Economic
Home Energy and Hometesa Hoiiaing Devalnoment Other

Program* Niit/llion Prouratna Servkea Services Proqrama

S  4.633,049 5 3 125.;5I S  5,267.951 5  4.060 a  795.997 S
1.023.-J48 55.851 846.371 776,732

90.954 1.506.630 127

55.162 g.S69 242,175 130.072 114.194
?i.-7n3

13 n 198 385 22 36

56.411 23.020

1.947 3.505 4.613 119,379 25 39.262
. 65.414 .

5_^Z1£J£2 S  962.153

S  'I86.3S7 S  I.5I8.SII 5  '191,081 S  725.102 >  .150.843 S  439,136
28.674 106.b65- 3/.035 43,514 '30.248 33,024

171.270 3fii.<;n« 144.229 203.970 r.j.r.53 !£0.79j
32.0C4 65.775 34,671 f-1.303 20,760 14,23:

3.10: 356 1.295 1.638
10 1.130 4.10.9 -.1

777. ?fi.ii: 12.051 '.703 t0.'-71
1,007,401 12.204 42,954 61.431 680 48.737

26.435 ll7.-3;7 6C-3.33S '.62C-
•2.293 n?3 543

C9 fl.io:
5,539 15.C35 33.453 57,881 15.298 6.390

S,SS5 5.053 48.121 I.600
.640 •-.54 lOO

2,8C3 1.242 82.239 3.546 1.35?
1GI.2M

386 3.33:- 6.521
19.054 17.479 fiO,372 11.034 2.56fi 743

300 305 126 37 348

1.050 3.300 38.627
3.4C6 1.527 165 2.488 614 1,185

90
2.429 3. lor. 20,992 18.872 2.299 1.117
6.IC4 12.325 7.212 9.615 16.338
6.147 4.170 1./48 41.-329 35.941 9.552

24.55? 21,112 •

122.47S 384.093 718.703 16.731 114

3.788.549 179.702 4.126,109 '2.ST1 24.399 3.782
65.414

5..5!a.4p? 7 e'29.-"99 i..5lC.502 2.913,553 £21,724 750.430

602.161 26-1.763 597,504 315.616 67.347 81.281

Totnl
Program

13.326,; 18
2.708,902
1.657.7JI

501.672
21.70.1

967

/5S.421
166.224
65.414

Managemant
and Oanvrai

625.37®

66

735
Jl'J.U'O

99.862

5  ia.130.7g2 5 1.13S.H2

4,311,057
27r>,0."i3

1.I97.7C3
226.367

6.419
.5.260

04.322
1.174.037

755.053
n.isn
8.229

134.126
61.749

1.177
97,249

101.22-1
10.23'

112.500
1.179

42.977

9.105
' 90

48.513
51,497
99.187
45.771

1.242.119
3.135,512

65.414

•.7.991.203

1.948.672

752.116
12C.4S7
4C.509
66.965

133

5.766
183.12?
59.518

153.102
6.619
4.538

43.430
113.918

1.027
2.075

3:0

2.858
49,579
31,999
81,034
17.341
2.767

47.535
5.675
3.912

139.968

1.9-18,072

11.9-18.672)

S 6.161.658 5 2.913.562 $ 6.114.006 S 3,229.569 S 369,121 S 831.711 $ lg.9;9.937 $_

14.451.497
2.708.902
1,057.741

601.633
21,7U3

1.402
516.501
239.096

65,414

1.763.183
396.830

1.244.?-, 1
296.322

6.552
14.026

247.454
1.233.525

909.155
•11.772
12.817

•-77.6-6
176.667

2.764
99.924

131.524
13,04*

152.165
23.172

124.011
26.525
' 2.565
90.053
57,172

103.-:09
45.771

1.382.:87
8,135.512

65.414

19939.937

f  19.939,937

See Independent Audilors' Report
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUWTY SERVICES INC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENOmiRES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED WAY 31. 2022

ASSISTANCE

j  FEDERAL GRANTOR/ LISTING
pASS-THROUGH GRANTORrt>ROGRAM TITLF NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR-S NAME GRANTOR'S NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDfTURE

.1- 2
U.S. 0«(Mi'rtmsnt of AarlculturB

Special Si^ptenierlal NUrilion Proytsm
Wofrerij Infsnls. and CNIdrsn (WIC) 10.5S7 Siatfi nl N-l nenndmenl of Flenllh S Humrm fiervicHS oin-ofin-576onor)0-102-500734

i 259.358

CP.ilc) sn3 Adutl Can Food Program
Cl^ik) and Adult Caiti Fuud Prugram

lO.SSS

tO.558

Srato of NH, Ocparimont of Education

Suite of NH. Department uf Educatiuii.

Unnnown

Unknown

S 114.790

59.463 204.273

Food Dletrtbutlon Cluster

Commodity SuDp'U'iiun'.iii Food Pr.<drdm

Commodity Suapiamenial Food Praqram (Fooc Commodiiles;
10.565

10.565

Suite of NH. Department of Huallti ̂  Human Services

Community Action,Program Beiknap-Merrlmack Couniloc

0 lO-ODO-52eOOOOO-102-500734

L/nknown

2.400

106.339 tOS.729

Total U S. Dupailineoi of A^n'culturu S 563.370

U.S. Oeonrtrnent ot HotiAlno end IJtTtnn DevelnrrmRnl

Community Oo'roloomcnt SiocK Oanis/Stalo's Program ono
Non-Entiilamen-. Grams in Ha\.%3l[ 14.228 City of Kseno SCS'Sheiter improvemenis i 615.918

Emergjncy Solu'iorrs Gmnl Program
COVID-19 Emergency Sahitlnm* Grani Program

14.231

i4.y:ti

Stale of NH, OHKS. Bureau of HousW^g Suppcits
Slate of NH. DHHS, Bureau of Housing Suppcrts

0-3.95-9G-9G8310-717GOOOOO-102-50731

05-95-42-423010-/92/01X10

s 12.255

283.853 296.108

SupDo1^e Housing Prc^ram
SupDOlivo Housing Program

14.235

14.235

Slntft of NH. DHHS. Biireau ol .Housing Supports

Sinte of NH. DHHS. Bureau of Housing Suopcrts

05-95-95-U5331O-/17Bl)O00t/-1O2-5O/31

050S-42-4230'.C'-70270000

.133.970

27.970 161.940

She'.ter Plus Care 14.238 Slate of Ni l. 01 HIS. Bureau of Housing Suppc rts NH0057L1T001910 228,294

Contmjum of Care Program
Corvmjum of Care Program

Contrnjum of Core Program

Total U^. Dcpartmoni of Housing and Urtsor. Oovelopmcni

14.267

14.267

14.267

State of NH, DHHS. Bureau of Housing Sucporis

Slate of NH, DHHS, Bureau of Housing $ucpc>rta

State of Nl {, Dl IHS Bureau of i lousing Sucpr-rts

NH0002L1T001004

NH0096L1TOC19I>1

N1ICO74L1T0G19O7

83.238

125.004

83.85? 293.089

s 1.590.349

U.S. Deoartmenl of Transoortatlon Federal Transit Admlrrtstration (FTA)

Formii'a Grants frv Rural Areas ?0.509 Sltdo of NH. Department of Transportatinr, CM. :i6-9r>-9ri4010-2910 s 548.491

TransitServlccs Programs Cluster

Entiancod MobtilTi' of Seniors and Inclvkluals wlin Clsabiifiles 20.513 Stole of NH. Department of T ronsportatlon 04-96-96-964010-2916 56.465

Federal Transit Cluster

3us and Bus Facilities Formula S Discrciiorviry Programs

(8io Programi 20.526 State of NH, iDcpanmcnl o< Transoortatlon 04-36-96-964010 2916 3.028

totelU.S. Cepiwtmenior ImnsportBtionFede.-al frar^sit Adminisirotion (FfA)

See Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of.Fcdenil Awords

s 607.984
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. IHC.

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2022

ASSISTANCE

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

LISTING

NUMBER

PASS-THROUGH

GRANTOR'S NAME GRANTOR'S NUMBER

FEDERAL

EXPENDITURE

U.S; Ocoartmcnt Of Treasury

CornnaviruB Relie/Fund

Ei'Wiyer«:v Ruiitai AsBiBUuKU Pr><jrbin
21.019

21.023

S-.ato of NH, DHHS, Bureau of Housing Supports

New Harr.psNra Housirxj

05-9;-42-423010-10410000

UnkfKM'n

% 60.659

ii.4io.Br.r.

Tola! U.S. Depailmeni of Treasury S 11.471.314

U.S. DanattmAni of Enerov

Wentherfeatiof< As.sis!an«! for Low-lTooms Porsoni* P.I ,042 Stafe nf NH. Officn of Ennrgy A Planning fl1-n2-0?4ni(V7706-f>74-5n05n? < 869.132-

Tjtal U.S. DcpGrtmcm of Eoorg^- i 869.132

U.S. Oeoartment of Health & Human Services

Aging Ctiisier

Spcdsl Progroms for Iho Aging, T'nte Ml. ̂ >30 B.
GQnts for Supoortivc So-occs ard Senior CcnicfO

Spoaal Programs lor iho Aging. Tl:ie ill, °art B.
Grtuaji lur Supuurtive Se'^rices and Svnlui Cenlurs

9.3,C4fi

93.04«;

State nf NH. Office of Energy S "'annirg

S'latB of N.H. CHHS. Bureau of EWerfy & Adul; Servicee

Ol-02-024U10-7705-0/4-560b8/

05-95-a8.4ai0i0-7872

S 5,730

70.240 S 75.070

Grants to States to Suppon Oral Healih Workforce ActivHies §3.236 StaUt uf NH. CHHS. NH MudlcHid 1006368 2.4G3

Activitiss IP Suppprt Slats. 1 risal. Local arvj l erhlorisl (51LT)
Hcdth apartment Rcsponso to Public Health or HoaUhcorc
Olsss 1 S3.201 S'lato of NH, DHHS. Division of Public Health Sar<nce6 01009057710C00500731 '9.071

l.nw lrv:nnw l ionw Energy Assistance (Fuel Assisrance)
Lowlnconje Home Energy- A.saislance {BWP)

COV1D.I9 Low Income Home ElK3■g^■ Assislaiice
ARP.ALow IrKume Home Energy,Assistance (BWP)
ARP,A Low Income Homo Energy Assisianco

53.5G8

93.568

93.566

93.568

Slate of NH, Office of Energy & Planning
Stale nf NH. Otiice pi Energy 8 Planrong

Siaie of NH. DHHS. Admlnlstrallon for C.niiCren &
Families. Off'ce uf Curnmuriity Seryiues

Stats of NH, Office of Energy & Ptanrdng
State of NH. Office of Energy & Plannlrtg

02-52-52-5200lO-ia870000-074.500587
Dl-<l2-()2-O2401O-77nn00On-Min5n7

02-52-62-520010-188/0000-0/4-500S8/

Gtuiil r/2001NH£5C3
02-052-052-520010-24190000 074-50C'587

02-052 062-520010-24yi00000

1,42G.0ei
2;4/;968
138.431

307.274

33.617
4.150.168 6.363,519

Community Services Siock Grant

COVl'>l9 Community Setvicos Block Gra"t

Cornmunliy Services 3'ock Grant - Dtscroitoonry

S3.569

93.569

State of NH. DHHS. Otv. of Family .Asaatsnce
Stole of NH. DHHS. OK-fclon of Economic & Houom;

SiaPH'iy

State of NH, DHHS. ON. of Fortffy Aeslsiancc

600/31

500731

367.612

222,106 579.715

93.570 Unkrrowfi 22.652

S«« Notfts to Schodulo of ExponditurM of Fodsral Awards
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SCHEDULE or EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31.2022

FEDERAL GRANTOR/

PASS-THROUGH GRANTOR/PROGRAM TITLE

U.S. OeparimBnl of Health & Human Services tcontinwdl

Head Starl Cluster

Hoad Start

/CCVIOTl9Ho3d Slart

Tsial.L^. Deparimsnt of HcoUh i Human Services
'■ i.

U.S. PcDortmont of Homeland Socuriiv

EmergerK^ Food nnd Shelter Nftlionol Boaro Pcoomm

Total U.S. Dfifwrlmsf*! nf H.invjlanrl Security

TOTAL

ASSISTANCE
USTING

NUMBER

03.6C0
93.600

Ciroci =unding
Direct ^unilinq

PASS-THROUGH
GRANTOR'S NAME GRANTOR'S NUMBER

OlChOll'tS't
0lHE00G33e

FEDERAL
EXPENDITURE

2.270,884
68,776

07.024 Stmc ol NH, DHHS. Office of Human ScrN*icc3

2.3.39,660

i 9.390.0S3

Unknown i U.ZD3

5_ _ 9.203

s 24.507.495

See Notey to Scliedule of E>.pendituree of federal Awards
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31, 2022

NOTE 1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of Southwestern Community Services. Inc.
under'programs of the federal government for the year ended May 31, 2022. The
information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of
the operations of Southwestern Community Services, Inc., it is not intended to
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows
of the Organization.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not
allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 INDIRECT COST RATE

Southwestern Community Services. Inc. has elected not to use the ten percent
de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

NOTE 4 FOOD DONATION

Nonmonetary assistance is reported in the Schedule at the fair value of the
commodities received and disbursed.

NOTE 5 SUBRECIPIENTS

Southwestern Community Services, Inc. had no subrecipients for the year ended
May 31, 2022.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED

IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of

Southwestern Community Services, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the consolidated
financial statements of Southwestern Community Services. Inc. (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporation) 'and related companies, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as of May 31, 2022, and the related consolidated statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated February 9, 2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the consolidated financial statements, we considered
Southwestern Community- Services, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting (internal
control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opiriion on the effectiveness of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable,
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's consolidated financial statements wilt not
be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider.to be material weaknesses. We identified a deficiency in internal control, described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2022-001 that we
consider to be a significant deficiency.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Southwestern Community Services,
Inc.'s consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws..regulations, contracts, and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the consolidated financial
statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our
tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s response to the findings identified in our audit and
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.'s response was not subjected to the. other auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the.financial-statements and) accordingly, we express no opinion on the
response.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the .effectiveness of
the Organization's internal control or on complianee. this report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this comrnunication is not suitable
for any other purpose.

Wolfeboro, New Hampshire
February 9. 2023

39



Leom.
J?onnei
& Roberts

CKHTlKll-i) PIJBUC ACCOIjNTAN'n^

VVOLl-KeOKO • N'OliTll CONWAY

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON.COMPLIANCE

FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL

OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors of
Southwestern Community Services. Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s (a New Hampshire nonprofit
corporatiori') compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB
Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2022.
Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s major federal programs are identified in the summary
of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our-opinion, Southwestern Community Services, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with
the compiiance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its rriajor federal programs for the year ended May 31, 2022.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accoTdance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200.
Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards {Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the- Uniform
Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance
section of our report.

We are required to be independent of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in 'accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program-. Our audit-does
not provide a legal determination of Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s compliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Managem~ent is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance pf ©^©ctive internal control'over compliance with the
requirements of 'laws, statutes, regulations, rules,, and-provisions of contracts-or :granl
agreemenls-appticable to Southwestern CofnniunitV Services, inc.'s federal prograrhs.



Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Gompliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with
the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and
express an opinion on Southwestern Community Services, Inc.'s compliance based on our
audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always
detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detectirig material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may-involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, - misrepresentations, or the override of -internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the
judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with the requirements of each major federal program
as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government
Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding Southwestern
Community Services, Inc.'s compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above and performing such other proccdureG og wc considered necessary in the
circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of Southwestern Community Services. Inc.'s internal
control over compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the- Uniform Guidance, 'but not for the purpose
of expressing ah opinion on the effectiveness of Southwestern Community
Services, Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material
weaknesses-in internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A-deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance vyith a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A maprial weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency.-or combination of deficiencies in internal control! over
compliance, such that there- is .a reasonable'possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal: program vyill not be prevented, or detected and. corrected,
on a timely basis: A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, ,pr a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
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requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internat control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to
identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be-material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over" compliance. Given these limitations, during our"
audit we did hot identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to
be material weaknesses, as defined above. However,- material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Wblfeboro, New Harnpshire
February 9. 2023
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SOUTHWESTERN COMMUNITY SERVICES. INC.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2022

SUMMARY OF AUDITORS'RESULTS

1. The auditors" report expresses an unmodified opinion on Whether the consolidated financial
statements-of Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies were
prepared in accordance with GAAP.

2. One significant deficiency disclosed during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements are reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. No material
weaknesses are reported.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the consolidated financial statements of
Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and related companies, which would be required
to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards were disclosed during
the audit.

4. No significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award' programs are
reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and
on Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance. No material
weaknesses are reported.

5. The auditors' report on compliance for the major federal award programs for Southwestern
Community Services, Inc. expresses an unmodified opinion on all major federal programs.

6. Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with 2 CFR section 200.516(a)
are reported in this Schedule.

7. The programs tested as major programs were; U.S. Department of Health and Human
Services: Low-Income Home Energy Assistance, ALN 93.568; U.S. Department of
Treasury; Emergency Rental Assistance Program, ALN 21.023; and U.S. Department of
Transportation; Formula Grants for Rural Areas. ALN 20.509.

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.

9. Southwestern Community Services. Inc. was determined to be a low-risk auditee.

FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AUDIT

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCY

2022-001 - Lack of accurate and timely reconciliations

Criteria; Internal controls ensuring timely and accurate reconciliations.

Condition: There was a delay in accurate account reconciliations at May 31, 2022.
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Ceuse: The Organization's internal control policies and procedures were not followed as
designed.

Effect: Significant and material journal entries were provided by the client to ensure
accurate financial statements.

Context: Reconciliations were not prepared timely, which resulted in late client entries
many of which were a result of audit testing and inquiries made by auditor.

Recommendation; Internal control policies and procedures should be followed throughout
the year to ensure accurate and timely reconciliations.

Views of Responsible Officials: The Organization acknowledges that internal control
policies relative to certain reconciliations were not followed as established. The
Organization's Leadership and the Fiscal Department Leadership is aware that Is this not
acceptable and the expectation is that all fiscal controls and policies are to be followed in a
timely and accurate manner.

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

None
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SOUTHWESTERN COMIVIUNITY SERVICES. INC.

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAY 31. 2022

There were no findings or questioned co.sts that were required to be reported in.the Schedule
of Findings and Questioned Costs for the year ended May 31, 2021.
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I  Southwestern Community Services, Inc. Board of Directors - Composirion- 2021 -|

CHESHIRE COUNTY SULLIVAN COUNTY

CONSTITUENT

SECTOR

Beth Fox

Assistant City Manager/
Human Resources Director

City of Keene

Mary Lou Huffling
Fall Mountain Emergency Food Shelf
Alstead Friendly Meals

Brianna Trombi

Head Start Policy Council
Parent Representative

PRIVATE

SECTOR

Kevin Watterson, Chair/Secretary

Clarke Companies (retired)

Anne Beattie

Newport Service Organization

PUBLIC

SECTOR

Jay Kahn
State Senator, District 10

Kerry Belknap Morris, M.Ed.
Early Childhood Education
River Valley Community College

David Edkins

Walpole, NH

Derek Ferland

Sullivan County Manager



SCS Transportation

Key Personnel - NHDOT

Name Job Title Salary -

Meg Freeman Chief Financial Officer 95,929.60

Keith Thibault . Chief Development Officer 87,796.80

Beth Daniels Chief Operating Officer 71,000.00 ■

Teri Palmer Transportation Director 49,920.00

Terri Curtis VDP Coordinator/Dispatcher 40,123.00



Beth Daniels

Experience

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH

.'hief Operating Officer 03/2016-Present
•  Responsible for all day-to-day program operations of the agency
•  Supervise Program Directors, including WlC, Energy, and Housing Stabilization
•  Ensure that all state and federal regulations are followed while those in need-receive a smooth delivery

of service

Director of Energy and Employment Programs 10/2008-12/2016
•  Oversee.all daily operations for Fuel Assistance, Electric Assistance, Neighbor Helping Neighbor,

Senior Energy Assistance, Weatherization, HRRP, CORE, and Assurance 16 as well as the employment
programs Workplace Success, Work Experience Program, and WIA.

Workforce Development Director 1 1/2006 - 10/2008
•  Supervise, direct, coach, and encourage staff of six within four programs
•  Collaborate with agency staff, community members and state contract holders to achieve common goals,

including agency name recognition and program success
•  Perform all SCS Program Director tasks including PPRs and budget management

Families @ Work Employment Specialist 03/2006 - 11/2006
• Managed a caseload of fifty (50) clients throughout the Keene, Claremont, Concord, and Nashua areas
• Worked closely with staff from Southwestern Community Services, Inc. and Southern New Hampshire

Services

•  Gained a strong working knowledge of all SCS programs for referral purposes

Second Start, Concord, NH
Career Development Specialist 1 1 /2004 - 03/2006
•  Facilitated daily job-readiness classes and skill-building exercises
•  Assisted participants with barrier resolution and the job search process
• Maintained participant records and completed reporting requirements
•  Received ongoing training in teaching techniques and learning styles

Nina's Family Daycare, Swanzey, NH 10/2003 - 1 1 /2004
Day care Provider
•  Responsible for meal planning, payment records, supplies, and activities
•  Acquired CPR & First Aid certification

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, NH
Case Manager, Homeless Services 09/2002 - 10/2003
•  Responsible for all daily operations of housing program, rules, and regulations
•  Completed weekly and monthly progress reports
•  Coordinated house meetings, workshops, case conferences, and life skills classes

Case Manager, Welfare-to-Work 05/2000-09/2002
•  Provided job placement and retention services for caseload of forty (40) clients
•  Gained working knowledge of Department of Health & Human Services, Immigration & Naturalization

Services, community agencies, and SCS



Education and Training

Results Oriented Management & Accountability (ROMA)

Grant Writing Workshop
Cheshire County

Nonviolent Crisis Intervention

Crisis Prevention Institute, Inc.

Leadership Training
Tad Dwyer Consulting

Criticism & Discipline Skills for Managers
CareerTrack

How to Supervise People
CareerTrack

Career Development Facilitator Training
National Career Development Association
I20~hour NCDA training

Certified Workforce Development Specialist
National Association of Workforce Development Professionals

Infection Control & Bloodborne Pathogens
Home Health Care

Bachelor of Arts in Human Services

Franklin Pierce College
Graduated cum laude

2016-2017

05/2012

20I-2'.

2010-201 1

11/2007

1 1/2007

09/2005

06/2005

01/2003'

05/2002

References Available



TERRI L.DAIGNAULT,VDP COORDINATOR/DISPATCHER . .

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

DP Coordinator and Morning Dispatcher
Southwestern Community Services Transportation Sept 2016 - Current

The Volunteer Driver Coordinator is responsible for developing and implementing a program for volunteer drivers within the
Agency's transportation program. Reports directly to the Transportation Services'Director this individual will recruit, train,
schedule, and oversee volunteer drivers while working collaborating with other agencies that provide volunteer transportation for
Sullivan County residents.

Recruits, screens, trains, supervises, schedules, and evaluates volunteer drivers
Identifies and implements resources for training and motivating volunteers
Maintains a roster of volunteers willing to provide services.

Maintains accurate records, producing monthly and quarterly reports of volunteer activities as requested.
Partners with area agencies to coordinate volunteer efforts in the region for optimum efficiency
Plans and implements an annual volunteer recognition event.

Coordinates the evaluation of the volunteer program including volunteer satisfaction surveys.

Handles incoming contacts to the program and makes home visits as appropriate.
Attends meetings and interfaces with other community groups and agencies as appropriate.
Participates in the public relations efforts by making presentations to community groups.
Other related duties as assigned.

The morning dispatcher directly supports SCS transportation programs. Responsible for a variety of activities including
collecting, compiling, and distributing transportation reports on both public and volunteer transportation services; managing the
Volunteer Driver Program: managing the bus drivers work schedule; coordinating the maintenance and repairs schedule for all
buses. Provide Drug and Alcohol Reasonable Suspicion referral for testing, accidents response and documentation. Also provide
1 dispatching and scheduling for bus transportation.

VDP Couidiiiatoi'and Morning Dispatcher Fcb2012 Sept 2016
Community Alliance of Human Services

Directly supported CAHS' transportation programs. Responsible for a variety of activities including collecting, compiling,
and distributing transportation reports on both public and volunteer transportation services; managing the Volunteer Driver
Program: managing the bus drivers work schedule; coordinating the maintenance and repairs schedule for all buses and serve
as a Drug & Alcohol Safety OtTicer.

Twin State Speedway July 2007 - April 2012

Sales, all aspects from dealing with customers, sales/ticket booths, training, overseeing of all
ticket takers, deposits, record keeping of all deposits and weekly intake, dealing with employees and customers, registrations,
and creating and maintaining websites. i

Fleury's Sates Aug 2010 - Feb 2012

Sales, ail aspects from dealing with customers, taking payments to selling cars, deposits, record keeping of all deposits and
weekly intake, dealing with employees and customers, registrations, and creating and maintaining websites

JiffyMart Aug 2007 - Jan 2010
Worked as Assistant Manager, cashier, stocking, daily paperwork, invoices, ordering and receiving of stock. Training of new
employees, opening and closing of store. Was responsible for daily deposits. Worked and trained in all areas of store, food
preparations.

'odgdon Sales Aug 1988 - Sept 1996

Worked as cashier, stocking, ordering, and receiving of stock. Trained new employees, payroll, invoicing, billing, answering
phones, dealing with the public. Set up new store fronts. Helped with auctions, scribing and any other duties as needed.



Margaret Freeman

Experience

2000-Present

Southwestern Community Services Inc.

Keene, NH

Chief Financial Officer (2014 - present)
Supervising the quality of accounting and financial reporting of SCS; a Community
Action Agency. Total funding of $18 million; federal, state and local funding sources.
Primary responsibilities include overseeing the accounting functions, implementation
and monitoring of internal controls, reporting financial position to the Board of
Directors, preparation of the annual A-133 audit, member of agencies Senior Staff.

Fiscal Director (2000-2014)

Responsible to lead and manage the daily operations of the Fiscal Department of SCS.
Primary duties include budget preparation and analysis, financial statement preparation
and audit coordination.

1993-2000

Emile J. Legere Management Corp
Keene, NH

Accountant

Provided bookkeeping for real estate management/development corp. Managed 16
affordable housing properties. Responsible for cash management, general ledger, A/P,
A/R, financial statement prep, and audit prep. Leasing Manager of large
commercial/retail property responsible for lease management and marketing of over 30
retail spaces.

Education

Leadership New Hampshire, Graduate 2011

Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH
M.B.A., 1999

Keene State College, Keene, NH

B.S., Management, 1991; concentration Mathematics and Computer Science



Keith F. ThibauU (603) 719-4208 (work)
kthibault@seshelps.org (e-mail)

Skills Summary

Effective "hands-on" manager with proven supervisory-experience.
Honest, dependable and self-motivated.
Strong written and oral communicator with PC skills & experience.
Detail oriented, highly organized, flexible and hard-working.
Able to effectively coordinate multiple projects and tasks.

Exoerlence

Southwestern Community Services, Inc., Keene, New Hampshire
Housing Director - October, 1993 to December 1998

Director of Housing & Economic Development - January 1999 to June 2001
Development Director - July 2001 to August 2007
chief development officer - September 2007 - Present

Primarily responsible for the acquisition, development and financing of over 450 units of affordable
housing, five Head Start pre-school facilities and 100,000 square feet of commercial space in fourteen
communities in southwestern New Hampshire. Member of the agency's Senior Staff. The chief
development officer position has grown to include all economic, program and philanthropic
development activities within this very dynamic Community Action Agency. The position also includes
the responsibility to represent the organization at numerous community events and on local, state and
regional boards. Highlights as Housing Director included the development of a comprehensive Property
Management component that currently maintains and manages all agency owned real estate; successful
administration of a federal HOPE 3 first time home buyer program in Sullivan County as well as being
the recipient of many awards for the development of historically significant properties.

Rural Housing Improvement, WInchendon, Massachusetts
Director of Home Ownership and Housing Counseling - June 1993 to October, 1993

This Program Director position consists primarily of the administration of a 5500,000 HOPE III
Implementation grant, HOME funding for First-time Home Buyers of $250,000, coordination of a State
Finance Authority approved Home Buyer Education course, management of several government
property disposition programs (FDIC, RTC and Fannie Mae), several rehabilitation programs, as well as
all housing counseling activities for the component. Staff supervised include two Housing Developers,
one or more Rehabilitation Specialists, one or more Housing Counselors as well as support staff.

Assistant Director for Administration/Leased Housing - April 1998 to May 1993

Administration of a nearly two thousand household Section 8 Rental Assistance program comprised the
overall scope of this position. Primary responsibilities included the disbursement of nearly nine million
dollars annually in Housing Assistance Payments to more than eleven hundred landlords, direct day-to
day supervision of eight staff, liaison work with all other Agency components as well as accurate record
keeping per HUD regulations. Highlights included the creation of Agency Family Seif-Sufficiency
Program (FSS) and serving on a statewide Project Coordinating Committee for FSS. 1 also represented
RHI on several committees of our State Housing Association as well as serving on several in-house
committees focusing on employee benefits, performance evaluations and the rewriting of Agency job
descriptions to conform to the American Disabilities Act.



Program Representative/Leased Housing - September 1986 to April 1998

Responsible for the administration and management of a two hundred-plus household caseload. Duties
included initial and annual inspections of all units, rent negotiation and general file maintenance.
Position required an unusually high degree of organizational, interpersonal and technical-skills.

■-Thorough knowledge of market area. Federal Housing Quality Standards and HUD Section 8 regulations
were required.

Education

University of Massachusetts at Amherst
Bachelor of Arts cum laude - 1983

Major: Economics with emphasis on Labor Economics
Minor: Political Science with emphasis on local govemment
Served a one-year paid internship with the University's Housing Administration, which led to
becoming the Assistant Director of the program during my Junior year.
Completed a full semester academic internship serving as an assistant to the Town Manager of
Action, Massachusetts.
Took advanced courses in Economics and Latin through the Liberal Arts Honors Program

Civic and Other Activities

Former Big Brother volunteer, Keene
Current Co-Chair of Heading for Home, our Regional Housing Coalition ,
Current co-chair of the Southwestern Region Planning Commission's Economic Development
Advisory Committee
Former volunteer at McKerley Health Care Center, Keene
Former Chair of the Board of Directors for the Keene Day Care Center
Current elected Vice Chairman of the Swanzey Zoning Board of Adjustment.
Current founding board member and Chairperson of the Monadnock Collaborative, a 501 (c) (3)
organization formed to provide regional information and supported referral services.
Dedicated husband and involved father of three children ages twenty-two, twenty and eight.

References available upon request.


